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�

81'(5�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�$&7�2)������
�
�
�0DUN�RQH���
�
࿰� )RUP�&��2IIHULQJ�6WDWHPHQW�
տ� )RUP�&�8��3URJUHVV�8SGDWH�
տ� )RUP�&�$��$PHQGPHQW�WR�2IIHULQJ�6WDWHPHQW�

տ� &KHFN�ER[�LI�$PHQGPHQW�LV�PDWHULDO�DQG�LQYHVWRUV�PXVW�UHFRQILUP�ZLWKLQ�ILYH�EXVLQHVV�
GD\V��

տ� )RUP�&�$5��$QQXDO�5HSRUW�
տ� )RUP�&�$5�$��$PHQGPHQW�WR�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�
տ� )RUP�&�75��7HUPLQDWLRQ�RI�5HSRUWLQJ�
�
Name of issuer�
0RGJDUGHQ��86$���,QF��
�
Legal status of issuer�
�
 Form�
� &RUSRUDWLRQ�
�
 Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Organization�
� :\RPLQJ�
�
 Date of organization�
� 2FWREHU����������
�
Physical address of issuer�
�����&RIIHHQ�$YHQXH����6XLWH�������6KHULGDQ��:<�������
�
Website of issuer�
ZZZ�PRGJDUGHQ�FRP�
�
Name of intermediary through which the Offering will be conducted�
7LWOH�)XQGV�
�
CIK number of intermediary�
�����������
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�
SEC file number of intermediary�
��������
�
CRD number, if applicable, of intermediary�
�������
�
Amount of compensation to be paid to the intermediary, whether as a dollar amount or a 
percentage of the Offering amount, or a good faith estimate if the exact amount is not available 
at the time of the filing, for conducting the Offering, including the amount of referral and any 
other fees associated with the Offering�
�����RI�WKH�DPRXQW�UDLVHG�
�
Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any arrangement 
for the intermediary to acquire such an interest�
������VHFXULWLHV��YDOXH�RI�UDLVHG�PRQH\��
�
Name of qualified third party “Escrow Agent” which the Offering will utilize�
1RUWK�&DSLWDO�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV�
�
Type of security offered�
&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�
�
Target number of Securities to be offered�
1�$�
�
Price (or method for determining price)�
��������
�
Target offering amount�
������������
�
Oversubscriptions accepted:�
ր� <HV�
տ� 1R�
�
Oversubscriptions will be allocated:�
տ� 3UR�UDWD�EDVLV�
ր� )LUVW�FRPH��ILUVW�VHUYHG�EDVLV�
տ� 2WKHU���
�
Maximum offering amount (if different from target offering amount)�
��������������
�
Deadline to reach the target offering amount�
$XJXVW����������
�
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127(��,I�WKH�VXP�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQWV�GRHV�QRW�HTXDO�RU�H[FHHG�WKH�WDUJHW�
RIIHULQJ�DPRXQW�DW�WKH�2IIHULQJ�GHDGOLQH��QR�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�EH�VROG�LQ�WKH�2IIHULQJ��
LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQWV�ZLOO�EH�FDQFHOOHG�DQG�FRPPLWWHG�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHWXUQHG��
�
Current number of employees�
��
�

� 0RVW�UHFHQW�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQG� 3ULRU�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQG�

7RWDO�$VVHWV� ������ ������

&DVK�	�&DVK�(TXLYDOHQWV� ������ ������

$FFRXQWV�5HFHLYDEOH� ������ ������

6KRUW�WHUP�'HEW� ������ ������

/RQJ�WHUP�'HEW� ������ ������

5HYHQXHV�6DOHV� ������ ������

&RVW�RI�*RRGV�6ROG� ������ ������

7D[HV�3DLG� ������ ������

1HW�,QFRPH� ������ ������

�
�
�
The jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the Securities:�
$ODEDPD��$ODVND��$UL]RQD��$UNDQVDV��&DOLIRUQLD��&RORUDGR��&RQQHFWLFXW��'HODZDUH��'LVWULFW�2I�
&ROXPELD�� )ORULGD��*HRUJLD��*XDP��+DZDLL�� ,GDKR�� ,OOLQRLV�� ,QGLDQD�� ,RZD��.DQVDV��.HQWXFN\��
/RXLVLDQD�� 0DLQH�� 0DU\ODQG�� 0DVVDFKXVHWWV�� 0LFKLJDQ�� 0LQQHVRWD�� 0LVVLVVLSSL�� 0LVVRXUL��
0RQWDQD�� 1HEUDVND�� 1HYDGD�� 1HZ� +DPSVKLUH�� 1HZ� -HUVH\�� 1HZ� 0H[LFR�� 1HZ� <RUN�� 1RUWK�
&DUROLQD�� 1RUWK� 'DNRWD�� 2KLR�� 2NODKRPD�� 2UHJRQ�� 3HQQV\OYDQLD�� 3XHUWR� 5LFR�� 5KRGH� ,VODQG��
6RXWK�&DUROLQD��6RXWK�'DNRWD��7HQQHVVHH��7H[DV��8WDK��9HUPRQW��9LUJLQ�,VODQGV��8�6���9LUJLQLD��
:DVKLQJWRQ�� :HVW� 9LUJLQLD�� :LVFRQVLQ�� :\RPLQJ�� $PHULFDQ� 6DPRD�� DQG� 1RUWKHUQ� 0DULDQD�
,VODQGV�
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�

2FWREHU�����������
�
�

)250�&�
�

8S�WR���������������
�

0RGJDUGHQ��86$���,QF��
�

��
&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�

�
7KLV�)RUP�&��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�FRYHU�SDJH�DQG�DOO�H[KLELWV�DWWDFKHG�KHUHWR��WKH��)RUP�&���LV�

EHLQJ�IXUQLVKHG�E\�0RGJDUGHQ��86$���,QF���D�:\RPLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ��WKH��&RPSDQ\���DV�ZHOO�DV�
UHIHUHQFHV� WR� �ZH��� �XV��� RU� �RXU���� WR� SURVSHFWLYH� LQYHVWRUV� IRU� WKH� VROH� SXUSRVH� RI� SURYLGLQJ�
FHUWDLQ� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DERXW� D� SRWHQWLDO� LQYHVWPHQW� LQ� &RQYHUWLEOH� 1RWHV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� �WKH�
�6HFXULWLHV���� ,QYHVWRUV� LQ� 6HFXULWLHV� DUH� VRPHWLPHV� UHIHUUHG� WR� KHUHLQ� DV� �3XUFKDVHUV��� 7KH�
&RPSDQ\� LQWHQGV� WR� UDLVH� DW� OHDVW� ������������ DQG� XS� WR� �������������� IURP� ,QYHVWRUV� LQ� WKH�
RIIHULQJ� RI� 6HFXULWLHV� GHVFULEHG� LQ� WKLV� )RUP� &� �WKLV� �2IIHULQJ���� 7KH� PLQLPXP� DPRXQW� RI�
6HFXULWLHV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�SXUFKDVHG�LV���������SHU�,QYHVWRU��ZKLFK�PD\�EH�ZDLYHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ���7KH�RIIHU�PDGH�KHUHE\�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�PRGLILFDWLRQ��SULRU�VDOH�
DQG�ZLWKGUDZDO�DW�DQ\�WLPH��

�
7KH�ULJKWV�DQG�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKH�KROGHUV�RI�6HFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�VHW�IRUWK�EHORZ�

LQ�WKH�VHFWLRQ�HQWLWOHG���The Offering and the Securities--The Securities��� � ,Q�RUGHU� WR�SXUFKDVH�
6HFXULWLHV�� D� SURVSHFWLYH� LQYHVWRU� PXVW� FRPSOHWH� WKH� VXEVFULSWLRQ� SURFHVV� WKURXJK� WKH�
,QWHUPHGLDU\¶V� SODWIRUP�� ZKLFK�PD\� EH� DFFHSWHG� RU� UHMHFWHG� E\� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� LQ� LWV� VROH� DQG�
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DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ���7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�FDQFHO�RU�UHVFLQG�LWV�RIIHU�WR�VHOO�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�
DW�DQ\�WLPH�DQG�IRU�DQ\�UHDVRQ��
�

7KH�2IIHULQJ�LV�EHLQJ�PDGH�WKURXJK�7LWOH�)XQGV��WKH��,QWHUPHGLDU\����7KH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�
ZLOO�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�UHFHLYH�������VHFXULWLHV��YDOXH�RI�UDLVHG�PRQH\��UHODWHG�WR�WKH�SXUFKDVH�DQG�VDOH�
RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��
�
�

� 3ULFH�WR�,QYHVWRUV� 6HUYLFH�)HHV�DQG�
&RPPLVVLRQV����� 1HW�3URFHHGV�

0LQLPXP�,QGLYLGXDO�
3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW� �������� ��� ��������

$JJUHJDWH�0LQLPXP�
2IIHULQJ�$PRXQW� ������������ ���������� �����������

$JJUHJDWH�0D[LPXP�
2IIHULQJ�$PRXQW� �������������� ����������� ������������

�
�
�
����� �7KLV�H[FOXGHV�IHHV�WR�&RPSDQ\¶V�DGYLVRUV��VXFK�DV�DWWRUQH\V�DQG�DFFRXQWDQWV���
����� �7LWOH�)XQGV�ZLOO�UHFHLYH�������VHFXULWLHV��YDOXH�RI�UDLVHG�PRQH\�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�2IIHULQJ����

�
$�FURZGIXQGLQJ�LQYHVWPHQW�LQYROYHV�ULVN��<RX�VKRXOG�QRW�LQYHVW�DQ\�IXQGV�LQ�WKLV�2IIHULQJ�
XQOHVV� \RX� FDQ� DIIRUG� WR� ORVH� \RXU� HQWLUH� LQYHVWPHQW�� ,Q�PDNLQJ� DQ� LQYHVWPHQW� GHFLVLRQ��
LQYHVWRUV�PXVW�UHO\�RQ�WKHLU�RZQ�H[DPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�LVVXHU�DQG�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�2IIHULQJ��
LQFOXGLQJ� WKH�PHULWV�DQG�ULVNV� LQYROYHG��7KHVH�6HFXULWLHV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�UHFRPPHQGHG�RU�
DSSURYHG� E\� DQ\� IHGHUDO� RU� VWDWH� VHFXULWLHV� FRPPLVVLRQ� RU� UHJXODWRU\� DXWKRULW\��
)XUWKHUPRUH�� WKHVH� DXWKRULWLHV� KDYH� QRW� SDVVHG� XSRQ� WKH� DFFXUDF\� RU� DGHTXDF\� RI� WKLV�
GRFXPHQW��7KH�8�6��6HFXULWLHV�DQG�([FKDQJH�&RPPLVVLRQ�GRHV�QRW�SDVV�XSRQ�WKH�PHULWV�RI�
DQ\�6HFXULWLHV�RIIHUHG�RU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�2IIHULQJ��QRU�GRHV�LW�SDVV�XSRQ�WKH�DFFXUDF\�RU�
FRPSOHWHQHVV� RI� DQ\�2IIHULQJ� GRFXPHQW� RU� RWKHU�PDWHULDOV�� 7KHVH� 6HFXULWLHV� DUH� RIIHUHG�
XQGHU�DQ�H[HPSWLRQ�IURP�UHJLVWUDWLRQ��KRZHYHU��QHLWKHU�WKH�8�6��6HFXULWLHV�DQG�([FKDQJH�
&RPPLVVLRQ�QRU�DQ\�VWDWH�VHFXULWLHV�DXWKRULW\�KDV�PDGH�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�WKDW�
WKHVH� 6HFXULWLHV� DUH� H[HPSW� IURP� UHJLVWUDWLRQ�� 7KH� &RPSDQ\� ILOLQJ� WKLV� )RUP� &� IRU� DQ�
RIIHULQJ�LQ�UHOLDQFH�RQ�6HFWLRQ���D�����RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�DQG�SXUVXDQW�WR�5HJXODWLRQ�&)����
��������HW�VHT���PXVW�ILOH�D�UHSRUW�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQQXDOO\�DQG�SRVW�WKH�UHSRUW�RQ�LWV�
ZHEVLWH�DW�ZZZ�PRGJDUGHQ�FRP�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�����GD\V�DIWHU�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�ILVFDO�
\HDU��7KH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�WHUPLQDWH�LWV�UHSRUWLQJ�REOLJDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
5XOH�����E��RI�5HJXODWLRQ�&)������������E���E\����EHLQJ�UHTXLUHG�WR�ILOH�UHSRUWV�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�
���D��RU�6HFWLRQ����G��RI�WKH�([FKDQJH�$FW�RI�������DV�DPHQGHG�����ILOLQJ�DW�OHDVW�RQH�DQQXDO�
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UHSRUW�SXUVXDQW� WR�5HJXODWLRQ�&)�DQG�KDYLQJ� IHZHU� WKDQ�����KROGHUV�RI�UHFRUG����� ILOLQJ�
DQQXDO�UHSRUWV�IRU�WKUHH�\HDUV�SXUVXDQW�WR�5HJXODWLRQ�&)�DQG�KDYLQJ�DVVHWV�HTXDO�WR�RU�OHVV�
WKDQ�����������������WKH�UHSXUFKDVH�RI�DOO�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�VROG�LQ�WKLV�2IIHULQJ�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
RU�DQRWKHU�SDUW\��RU����WKH�OLTXLGDWLRQ�RU�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\���

7KH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&�LV�2FWREHU�����������
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FHUWLILHG� WKDW�DOO�RI� WKH� IROORZLQJ�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�758(�IRU� WKH�&RPSDQ\� LQ�
FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKLV�2IIHULQJ��
�
����,V�RUJDQL]HG�XQGHU��DQG�VXEMHFW�WR��WKH�ODZV�RI�D�6WDWH�RU�WHUULWRU\�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RU�WKH�
'LVWULFW�RI�&ROXPELD��
����,V�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQW�WR�ILOH�UHSRUWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ����RU�VHFWLRQ����G��RI�WKH�
6HFXULWLHV�([FKDQJH�$FW�RI����������8�6�&����P�RU���R�G����
����,V�QRW�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPSDQ\��DV�GHILQHG�LQ�VHFWLRQ���RI�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPSDQ\�$FW�RI������
����8�6�&�� ��D����� RU� H[FOXGHG� IURP� WKH� GHILQLWLRQ� RI� LQYHVWPHQW� FRPSDQ\� E\� VHFWLRQ� ��E�� RU�
VHFWLRQ���F��RI�WKDW�$FW�����8�6�&����D���E��RU���D���F����
����,V�QRW�LQHOLJLEOH�WR�RIIHU�RU�VHOO�VHFXULWLHV�LQ�UHOLDQFH�RQ�VHFWLRQ���D�����RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�����
8�6�&����G�D������DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�D�GLVTXDOLILFDWLRQ�DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�����������D���
����+DV�ILOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG�SURYLGHG�WR�LQYHVWRUV��WR�WKH�H[WHQW�UHTXLUHG��DQ\�RQJRLQJ�
DQQXDO�UHSRUWV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ�GXULQJ�WKH�WZR�\HDUV�LPPHGLDWHO\�SUHFHGLQJ�WKH�ILOLQJ�RI�WKLV�)RUP�
&��DQG�
���� +DV� D� VSHFLILF� EXVLQHVV� SODQ�� ZKLFK� LV� QRW� WR� HQJDJH� LQ� D� PHUJHU� RU� DFTXLVLWLRQ� ZLWK� DQ�
XQLGHQWLILHG�FRPSDQ\�RU�FRPSDQLHV��
�
7+(5(� $5(� 6,*1,),&$17� 5,6.6� $1'� 81&(57$,17,(6� $662&,$7('� :,7+� $1�
,19(670(17�,1�7+(�&203$1<�$1'�7+(�6(&85,7,(6��7+(�6(&85,7,(6�2))(5('�
+(5(%<� $5(� 127� 38%/,&/<�75$'('� $1'� $5(� 68%-(&7� 72� 75$16)(5�
5(675,&7,216��7+(5(�,6�12�38%/,&�0$5.(7�)25�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�$1'�21(�0$<�
1(9(5�'(9(/23��$1� ,19(670(17� ,1�7+(�&203$1<� ,6�+,*+/<�63(&8/$7,9(��
7+(�6(&85,7,(6�6+28/'�127�%(�385&+$6('�%<�$1<21(�:+2�&$1127�%($5�
7+(�),1$1&,$/�5,6.�2)�7+,6�,19(670(17�)25�$1�,1'(),1,7(�3(5,2'�2)�7,0(�
$1'�:+2�&$1127�$))25'�7+(�/266�2)�7+(,5�(17,5(�,19(670(17��6((�7+(�
6(&7,21�2)�7+,6�)250�&�(17,7/('��5,6.�)$&7256���
�

��7+(6(�6(&85,7,(6�,192/9(�$�+,*+�'(*5((�2)�5,6.�7+$7�0$<�127�%(�
$335235,$7(�)25�$//�,19(67256��

7+,6�)250�&�'2(6�127�&2167,787(�$1�2))(5�,1�$1<�-85,6',&7,21�,1�
:+,&+�$1�2))(5�,6�127�3(50,77('��

35,25�72�&216800$7,21�2)�7+(�385&+$6(�$1'�6$/(�2)�$1<�6(&85,7<�
7+(�&203$1<�:,//�$))25'�35263(&7,9(�,19(67256�$1�23325781,7<�72�$6.�
48(67,216� 2)� $1'� 5(&(,9(� $16:(56� )520� 7+(� &203$1<� $1'� ,76�
0$1$*(0(17� �&21&(51,1*�7+(�7(506�$1'�&21',7,216�2)�7+,6�2))(5,1*�
$1'�7+(�&203$1<�� �12�6285&(�27+(5�7+$1�7+(� ,17(50(',$5<�+$6�%((1�
$87+25,=('� 72� *,9(� $1<� ,1)250$7,21� 25� 0$.(� $1<� 5(35(6(17$7,216�
27+(5�7+$1�7+26(�&217$,1('�,1�7+,6�)250�&��$1'�,)�*,9(1�25�0$'(�%<�$1<�
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27+(5�68&+�3(5621�25�(17,7<��68&+�,1)250$7,21�0867�127�%(�5(/,('�21�
$6�+$9,1*�%((1�$87+25,=('�%<�7+(�&203$1<���

35263(&7,9(�,19(67256�$5(�127�72�&216758(�7+(�&217(176�2)�7+,6�
)250� &� $6� /(*$/�� $&&2817,1*� 25� 7$;� $'9,&(� 25� $6� ,1)250$7,21�
1(&(66$5,/<� $33/,&$%/(� 72� ($&+� 35263(&7,9(� ,19(6725¶6� 3$57,&8/$5�
),1$1&,$/� 6,78$7,21�� � ($&+� ,19(6725� 6+28/'� &2168/7� +,6� 25� +(5� 2:1�
),1$1&,$/� $'9,6(5�� &2816(/� $1'� $&&2817$17� $6� 72� /(*$/�� 7$;� $1'�
5(/$7('�0$77(56�&21&(51,1*�+,6�25�+(5�,19(670(17��

7+(�6(&85,7,(6�2))(5('�+(5(%<�:,//�+$9(�75$16)(5�5(675,&7,216��
12� 6(&85,7,(6� 0$<� %(� 3/('*('�� 75$16)(55('�� 5(62/'� 25� 27+(5:,6(�
',6326('�2)�%<�$1<�,19(6725�(;&(37�38568$17�72�58/(�����2)�5(*8/$7,21�
&)��,19(67256�6+28/'�%(�$:$5(�7+$7�7+(<�:,//�%(�5(48,5('�72�%($5�7+(�
),1$1&,$/�5,6.6�2)�7+,6�,19(670(17�)25�$1�,1'(),1,7(�3(5,2'�2)�7,0(��

��
1$6$$�81,)250�/(*(1'�

�
,1�0$.,1*�$1�,19(670(17�'(&,6,21�,19(67256�0867�5(/<�21�7+(,5�

2:1�(;$0,1$7,21�2)�7+(��3(5621��25��(17,7<��,668,1*��7+(��6(&85,7,(6��$1'��
7+(��7(506��2)��7+(��2))(5,1*��,1&/8',1*�7+(�0(5,76�$1'�5,6.6�,192/9('��
��

7+(6(�6(&85,7,(6�+$9(�127�%((1�5(&200(1'('�%<�$1<�)('(5$/�25�
67$7(�6(&85,7,(6�&200,66,21�25�5(*8/$725<�$87+25,7<��)857+(5025(��
7+(� )25(*2,1*� $87+25,7,(6� +$9(� 127� &21),50('� 7+(� $&&85$&<� 25�
'(7(50,1('�7+(�$'(48$&<�2)� 7+,6� '2&80(17��$1<�5(35(6(17$7,21�72�
7+(�&2175$5<�,6�$�&5,0,1$/�2))(16(��
��

�
63(&,$/�127,&(�72�)25(,*1�,19(67256�

�
,)� 7+(� ,19(6725� /,9(6� 2876,'(� 7+(� 81,7('� 67$7(6�� ,7� ,6� 7+(�

,19(6725¶6�5(63216,%,/,7<�72�)8//<�2%6(59(�7+(�/$:6�2)�$1<�5(/(9$17�
7(55,725<� 25� -85,6',&7,21� 2876,'(� 7+(� 81,7('� 67$7(6� ,1� &211(&7,21�
:,7+� $1<� 385&+$6(� 2)� 7+(� 6(&85,7,(6�� ,1&/8',1*� 2%7$,1,1*� 5(48,5('�
*29(510(17$/�25�27+(5�&216(176�25�2%6(59,1*�$1<�27+(5�5(48,5('�
/(*$/�25�27+(5�)250$/,7,(6��7+(�&203$1<�5(6(59(6�7+(�5,*+7�72�'(1<�
7+(�385&+$6(�2)�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�%<�$1<�)25(,*1�,19(6725��

�
63(&,$/�127,&(�72�&$1$',$1�,19(67256�

�
,)� 7+(� ,19(6725� /,9(6� :,7+,1� &$1$'$�� ,7� ,6� 7+(� ,19(6725¶6�

5(63216,%,/,7<�72� )8//<�2%6(59(�7+(� /$:6�2)�$�&$1$'$�� 63(&,),&$//<�
:,7+�5(*$5'�72�7+(�75$16)(5�$1'�5(6$/(�2)�$1<�6(&85,7,(6�$&48,5('�,1�
7+,6�2))(5,1*��
�
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�
127,&(�5(*$5',1*�(6&52:�$*(17�

�
1257+� &$3,7$/� ),1$1&,$/� 6(59,&(6�� 7+(� (6&52:� $*(17� 6(59,&,1*�

7+(�2))(5,1*��+$6�127�,19(67,*$7('�7+(�'(6,5$%,/,7<�25�$'9,6$%,/,7<�2)�
$1� ,19(670(17� ,1� 7+,6�2))(5,1*�25� 7+(� 6(&85,7,(6�2))(5('�+(5(,1�� 7+(�
(6&52:�$*(17�0$.(6�12�5(35(6(17$7,216��:$55$17,(6��(1'256(0(176��
25�-8'*(0(17�21�7+(�0(5,76�2)�7+(�2))(5,1*�25�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�2))(5('�
+(5(,1��7+(�(6&52:�$*(17¶6�&211(&7,21�72�7+(�2))(5,1*�,6�62/(/<�)25�
7+(�/,0,7('�385326(6�2)�$&7,1*�$6�$�6(59,&(�3529,'(5��
�

Forward Looking Statement Disclosure�
 
This Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein contain 

forward-looking statements and are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than 
statements of historical fact or relating to present facts or current conditions included in this Form 
C are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give the Company’s current 
reasonable expectations and projections relating to its financial condition, results of operations, 
plans, objectives, future performance and business. You can identify forward-looking statements 
by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may 
include words such as "anticipate," "estimate," "expect," "project," "plan," "intend," "believe," 
"may," "should," "can have," "likely" and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection 
with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or other 
events.�

 
The forward-looking statements contained in this Form C and any documents incorporated 

by reference herein or therein are based on reasonable assumptions the Company has made in 
light of its industry experience, perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future 
developments and other factors it believes are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read 
and consider this Form C, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of 
performance or results. They involve risks, uncertainties (many of which are beyond the 
Company’s control) and assumptions. Although the Company believes that these forward-looking 
statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could 
affect its actual operating and financial performance and cause its performance to differ 
materially from the performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Should one or 
more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect 
or change, the Company’s actual operating and financial performance may vary in material 
respects from the performance projected in these forward-looking statements.�

 
Any forward-looking statement made by the Company in this Form C or any documents 

incorporated by reference herein or therein speaks only as of the date of this Form C. Factors or 
events that could cause our actual operating and financial performance to differ may emerge from 
time to time, and it is not possible for the Company to predict all of them. The Company undertakes 
no obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, 
future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by law.�
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Disclaimer of Television Presentation�
 

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RIILFHUV�PD\�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKH�ILOPLQJ�RI�D�WHOHYLVLRQ�VHULHV�DQG�LQ�WKH�FRXUVH�RI�
WKH�ILOPLQJ��PD\�SUHVHQW�FHUWDLQ�EXVLQHVV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�WKH�LQYHVWRU�SDQHO�DSSHDULQJ�RQ�WKH�VKRZ�
�WKH�³3UHVHQWDWLRQ´���7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�QRW�SDVV�XSRQ�WKH�PHULWV�RI��FHUWLI\��DSSURYH��RU�RWKHUZLVH�
DXWKRUL]H� WKH� VWDWHPHQWV� PDGH� LQ� WKH� 3UHVHQWDWLRQ�� 7KH� 3UHVHQWDWLRQ� FRPPHQWDU\� EHLQJ�PDGH�
VKRXOG� QRW� EH� YLHZHG� DV� VXSHULRU� RU� D� VXEVWLWXWH� IRU� WKH� GLVFORVXUHV� PDGH� LQ� WKLV� )RUP�&��
$FFRUGLQJO\��WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�PDGH�LQ�WKH�3UHVHQWDWLRQ��XQOHVV�UHLWHUDWHG�LQ�WKH�RIIHULQJ�PDWHULDOV�
SURYLGHG�KHUHLQ��VKRXOG�QRW�EH�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�EXVLQHVV�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV�DV�RI�WKH�GDWH�RI�
WKLV�RIIHULQJ��0RUHRYHU��WKH�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�PD\�LQYROYH�VHYHUDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQVWLWXWLQJ�SXIIHU\��WKDW�
LV��H[DJJHUDWLRQV�QRW�WR�EH�WDNHQ�OLWHUDOO\�RU�RWKHUZLVH�DV�LQGLFDWLRQ�RI�IDFWXDO�GDWD�RU�KLVWRULFDO�RU�
IXWXUH�SHUIRUPDQFH���

7DEOH�RI�&RQWHQWV�
6800$5<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

7KH�%XVLQHVV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
7KH�2IIHULQJ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

5,6.�)$&7256�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5LVNV�5HODWHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%XVLQHVV�DQG�,QGXVWU\���������������������������������������������������������������
5LVNV�5HODWHG�WR�WKH�6HFXULWLHV������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

%86,1(66�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
%XVLQHVV�3ODQ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�3URGXFWV�DQG�RU�6HUYLFHV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RPSHWLWLRQ�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6XSSO\�&KDLQ�DQG�&XVWRPHU�%DVH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,QWHOOHFWXDO�3URSHUW\����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
*RYHUQPHQWDO�5HJXODWRU\�$SSURYDO�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH������������������������������������������������������������������
/LWLJDWLRQ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2WKHU����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

86(�2)�352&(('6������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
',5(&7256��2)),&(56�$1'�(03/2<((6������������������������������������������������������������������������������

'LUHFWRUV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2IILFHUV������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(PSOR\HHV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

&$3,7$/,=$7,21�$1'�2:1(56+,3����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2ZQHUVKLS�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

),1$1&,$/�,1)250$7,21���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2SHUDWLRQV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
/LTXLGLW\�DQG�&DSLWDO�5HVRXUFHV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&DSLWDO�([SHQGLWXUHV�DQG�2WKHU�2EOLJDWLRQV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�DQG�2WKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
7UHQGV�DQG�8QFHUWDLQWLHV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

7+(�2))(5,1*�$1'�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
7KH�2IIHULQJ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
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7KH�6HFXULWLHV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
9RWLQJ�DQG�&RQWURO������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$QWL�'LOXWLRQ�5LJKWV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HVWULFWLRQV�RQ�7UDQVIHU����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2WKHU�0DWHULDO�7HUPV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

7$;�0$77(56��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
75$16$&7,216�:,7+�5(/$7('�3(56216�$1'�&21)/,&76�2)�,17(5(67�����������������

5HODWHG�3HUVRQ�7UDQVDFWLRQV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQIOLFWV�RI�,QWHUHVW�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

27+(5�,1)250$7,21�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
%DG�$FWRU�'LVFORVXUH��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(;+,%,76�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(;+,%,7�$�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�
�
�
21*2,1*�5(3257,1*�
�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� ZLOO� ILOH� D� UHSRUW� HOHFWURQLFDOO\� ZLWK� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� 	� ([FKDQJH� &RPPLVVLRQ�
DQQXDOO\�DQG�SRVW�WKH�UHSRUW�RQ�LWV�ZHEVLWH��QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�����GD\V�DIWHU�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�
ILVFDO�\HDU��
�
2QFH�SRVWHG��WKH�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�PD\�EH�IRXQG�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ZHEVLWH�DW��ZZZ�PRGJDUGHQ�FRP�
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�PXVW�FRQWLQXH�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�RQJRLQJ�UHSRUWLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�XQWLO��
����WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�ILOH�UHSRUWV�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ����D��RU�6HFWLRQ����G��RI�WKH�([FKDQJH�
$FW��
����WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�ILOHG�DW�OHDVW�WKUHH�DQQXDO�UHSRUWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�5HJXODWLRQ�&)�DQG�KDV�WRWDO�
DVVHWV�WKDW�GR�QRW�H[FHHG��������������
����WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�ILOHG�DW�OHDVW�RQH�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�SXUVXDQW�WR�5HJXODWLRQ�&)�DQG�KDV�IHZHU�WKDQ�
����KROGHUV�RI�UHFRUG��
����WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�DQRWKHU�SDUW\�UHSXUFKDVHV�DOO�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LVVXHG�LQ�UHOLDQFH�RQ�6HFWLRQ�
��D�����RI� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�� LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�SD\PHQW� LQ� IXOO�RI�GHEW� VHFXULWLHV�RU�DQ\�FRPSOHWH�
UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�UHGHHPDEOH�VHFXULWLHV��RU�
����WKH�&RPSDQ\�OLTXLGDWHV�RU�GLVVROYHV�LWV�EXVLQHVV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�VWDWH�ODZ��
�
�
�
$ERXW�WKLV�)RUP�&�

�
<RX�VKRXOG�UHO\�RQO\�RQ�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKLV�)RUP�&��:H�KDYH�QRW�DXWKRUL]HG�DQ\RQH�
WR�SURYLGH�\RX�ZLWK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�WKDW�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKLV�)RUP�&��:H�DUH�RIIHULQJ�WR�
VHOO�� DQG� VHHNLQJ� RIIHUV� WR� EX\� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� RQO\� LQ� MXULVGLFWLRQV� ZKHUH� RIIHUV� DQG� VDOHV� DUH�
SHUPLWWHG��<RX�VKRXOG�DVVXPH�WKDW�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKLV�)RUP�&�LV�DFFXUDWH�RQO\�DV�RI�
WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�WKH�WLPH�RI�GHOLYHU\�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&�RU�RI�DQ\�VDOH�RI�6HFXULWLHV��
2XU�EXVLQHVV��ILQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ��UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��DQG�SURVSHFWV�PD\�KDYH�FKDQJHG�VLQFH�WKDW�
GDWH��
�
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6WDWHPHQWV�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�DV�WR�WKH�FRQWHQW�RI�DQ\�DJUHHPHQWV�RU�RWKHU�GRFXPHQW�DUH�VXPPDULHV�
DQG��WKHUHIRUH��DUH�QHFHVVDULO\�VHOHFWLYH�DQG�LQFRPSOHWH�DQG�DUH�TXDOLILHG�LQ�WKHLU�HQWLUHW\�E\�WKH�
DFWXDO�DJUHHPHQWV�RU�RWKHU�GRFXPHQWV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�SURYLGH�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�DVN�TXHVWLRQV�
RI�DQG�UHFHLYH�DQVZHUV�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW�FRQFHUQLQJ�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�
2IIHULQJ��WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�UHOHYDQW�PDWWHUV�DQG�DQ\�DGGLWLRQDO�UHDVRQDEOH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�
DQ\�SURVSHFWLYH�,QYHVWRU�SULRU�WR�WKH�FRQVXPPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�VDOH�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��
�
7KLV�)RUP�&�GRHV�QRW�SXUSRUW�WR�FRQWDLQ�DOO�RI�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKDW�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�HYDOXDWH�WKH�
2IIHULQJ�DQG�DQ\�UHFLSLHQW�KHUHRI�VKRXOG�FRQGXFW�LWV�RZQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�DQDO\VLV��7KH�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�EHOLHYHG�WR�EH�UHOLDEOH��1R�ZDUUDQW\�FDQ�
EH�PDGH�DV�WR�WKH�DFFXUDF\�RI�VXFK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RU�WKDW�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�KDYH�QRW�FKDQJHG�VLQFH�WKH�
GDWH�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&��7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�H[SHFW�WR�XSGDWH�RU�RWKHUZLVH�UHYLVH�WKLV�)RUP�&�RU�
RWKHU�PDWHULDOV�VXSSOLHG�KHUHZLWK��7KH�GHOLYHU\�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&�DW�DQ\�WLPH�GRHV�QRW�LPSO\�WKDW�WKH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�LV�FRUUHFW�DV�RI�DQ\�WLPH�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&��7KLV�
)RUP�&�LV�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�2IIHULQJ�GHVFULEHG�KHUHLQ�DQG�PD\�QRW�EH�UHSURGXFHG�
RU�XVHG�IRU�DQ\�RWKHU�SXUSRVH��
�
6800$5<��
�
7KH�IROORZLQJ�VXPPDU\�LV�TXDOLILHG�LQ�LWV�HQWLUHW\�E\�PRUH�GHWDLOHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKDW�PD\�DSSHDU�
HOVHZKHUH�LQ�WKLV�)RUP�&�DQG�WKH�([KLELWV�KHUHWR��(DFK�SURVSHFWLYH�,QYHVWRU�LV�XUJHG�WR�UHDG�WKLV�
)RUP�&�DQG�WKH�([KLELWV�KHUHWR�LQ�WKHLU�HQWLUHW\���
�
0RGJDUGHQ��86$���,QF���WKH��&RPSDQ\���LV�D�:\RPLQJ�&RUSRUDWLRQ��IRUPHG�RQ�2FWREHU�����������
7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZDV�IRUPHUO\�NQRZQ�DV���������&DQDGD��,QF���0RGJDUGHQ����
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�ORFDWHG�DW������&RIIHHQ�$YHQXH��6XLWH�������6KHULGDQ��:<��������
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ZHEVLWH�LV�ZZZ�PRGJDUGHQ�FRP��
�
7KH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DYDLODEOH�RQ�RU�WKURXJK�RXU�ZHEVLWH�LV�QRW�D�SDUW�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&��,Q�PDNLQJ�DQ�
LQYHVWPHQW� GHFLVLRQ� ZLWK� UHVSHFW� WR� RXU� 6HFXULWLHV�� \RX� VKRXOG� RQO\� FRQVLGHU� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ�
FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKLV�)RUP�&���
�
7KH�%XVLQHVV��
�
0RGJDUGHQ¶V�VPDUW�LQGRRU�IDUPV�EULGJHV�WKH�JDS�EHWZHHQ�PRGHUQ�XUEDQ�OLIH��KXPDQ�ZHOOQHVV�DQG�
WKH�KHDOWK�RI�WKH�SODQHW��*URZ������RUJDQLF�OHDI\�JUHHQV�LQ�D�EHDXWLIXOO\�GHVLJQHG��VXVWDLQDEOH��
DQG�HDV\� WR�XVH� LQGRRU� IDUP��7KH�EXVLQHVV�ZLOO�JHQHUDWH� UHYHQXH� WKURXJK�D�GLUHFW�WR�FRQVXPHU�
VXEVFULSWLRQ�PRGHO�DQG�JDLQ�QHWZRUN�HIIHFWV�E\�VFDOLQJ�JOREDOO\�WKURXJK�EUDQGHG�SDUWQHUVKLSV�DQG�
WHFKQRORJLHV�VXFK�DV�$,��,R7�DQG�SODQW�KHDOWK�VFLHQFH���
�
7KH�2IIHULQJ��
�
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0LQLPXP�DPRXQW�RI�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�
EHLQJ�RIIHUHG� 1�$�

7RWDO�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DIWHU�
2IIHULQJ��LI�PLQLPXP�DPRXQW�UHDFKHG�� ����

0D[LPXP�DPRXQW�RI�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV� ������

7RWDO�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DIWHU�
2IIHULQJ��LI�PD[LPXP�DPRXQW�UHDFKHG�� ������

3XUFKDVH�SULFH�SHU�6HFXULW\� ���������

0LQLPXP�LQYHVWPHQW�DPRXQW�SHU�LQYHVWRU� ��������

2IIHULQJ�GHDGOLQH� $XJXVW����������

8VH�RI�SURFHHGV� 6HH�WKH�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�XVH�RI�SURFHHGV�RQ�
SDJH����KHUHRI��

9RWLQJ�5LJKWV� 6HH�WKH�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�RQ�
SDJH����KHUHRI���

�
�
�
5,6.�)$&7256��
�
5LVNV�5HODWHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�%XVLQHVV�DQG�,QGXVWU\��
�
We have no operating history upon which you can evaluate our performance, and accordingly, 
our prospects must be considered in light of the risks that any new company encounters.�
:H�ZHUH�LQFRUSRUDWHG�XQGHU�WKH�ODZV�RI�:\RPLQJ�RQ�$XJXVW����������DQG�XQGHU�2QWDULR��&DQDGD�
RQ�0D\��WK�������ZKHUH�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV�WKXV�IDU�KDYH�EHHQ�VWDUWXS�UHODWHG�DQG�SURGXFW�GHYHORSPHQW�
DQG�FRQVXPHU�UHVHDUFK��PDUNHWLQJ�DQG�SURGXFW�VXUYH\LQJ��$FFRUGLQJO\��ZH�KDYH�OLWWOH�KLVWRU\�XSRQ�
ZKLFK� DQ� HYDOXDWLRQ� RI� RXU� SURVSHFWV� DQG� IXWXUH� SHUIRUPDQFH� FDQ� EH� PDGH�� 2XU� SURSRVHG�
RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�DOO�EXVLQHVV�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�D�QHZ�HQWHUSULVH��7KH�OLNHOLKRRG�RI�RXU�
FUHDWLRQ�RI�D�YLDEOH�EXVLQHVV�PXVW�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�LQ�OLJKW�RI�WKH�SUREOHPV��H[SHQVHV��GLIILFXOWLHV��
FRPSOLFDWLRQV��DQG�GHOD\V�IUHTXHQWO\�HQFRXQWHUHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�LQFHSWLRQ�RI�D�EXVLQHVV��
RSHUDWLRQ�LQ�D�FRPSHWLWLYH�LQGXVWU\��DQG�WKH�FRQWLQXHG�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�DGYHUWLVLQJ��SURPRWLRQV��
DQG�D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�FOLHQW�EDVH��:H�DQWLFLSDWH�WKDW�RXU�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�ZLOO�LQFUHDVH�IRU�WKH�
QHDU�IXWXUH��7KHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�DVVXUDQFHV�WKDW�ZH�ZLOO�HYHU�RSHUDWH�SURILWDEO\��<RX�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�
WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�EXVLQHVV��RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�SURVSHFWV�LQ�OLJKW�RI�WKH�ULVNV��H[SHQVHV�DQG�FKDOOHQJHV�
IDFHG�DV�DQ�HDUO\�VWDJH�FRPSDQ\��
�
�
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We rely on other companies to provide raw materials, electronic and plastic/metal material 
components, for our products.�
:H� GHSHQG� RQ� WKHVH� VXSSOLHUV� DQG� VXEFRQWUDFWRUV� WR� PHHW� RXU� FRQWUDFWXDO� REOLJDWLRQV� WR� RXU�
FXVWRPHUV�DQG�FRQGXFW�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV��2XU�DELOLW\�WR�PHHW�RXU�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�RXU�FXVWRPHUV�PD\�
EH�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG�LI�VXSSOLHUV�RU�VXEFRQWUDFWRUV�GR�QRW�SURYLGH�WKH�DJUHHG�XSRQ�VXSSOLHV�RU�
SHUIRUP�WKH�DJUHHG�XSRQ�VHUYLFHV�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�FXVWRPHU�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�LQ�D�WLPHO\�DQG�
FRVW�HIIHFWLYH� PDQQHU�� /LNHZLVH�� WKH� TXDOLW\� RI� RXU� SURGXFWV� PD\� EH� DGYHUVHO\� LPSDFWHG� LI�
FRPSDQLHV� WR� ZKRP� ZH� GHOHJDWH� PDQXIDFWXUH� RI� PDMRU� FRPSRQHQWV� RU� VXEV\VWHPV� IRU� RXU�
SURGXFWV�� RU� IURP�ZKRP�ZH� DFTXLUH� VXFK� LWHPV�� GR� QRW� SURYLGH� UDZ�PDWHULDOV�� HOHFWURQLF� DQG�
SODVWLF�PHWDO� FRPSRQHQWV� ZKLFK� PHHW� UHTXLUHG� VSHFLILFDWLRQV� DQG� SHUIRUP� WR� RXU� DQG� RXU�
FXVWRPHUV� ¶H[SHFWDWLRQV��2XU�VXSSOLHUV�PD\�EH�OHVV� OLNHO\�WKDQ�XV�WR�EH�DEOH�WR�TXLFNO\�UHFRYHU�
IURP�QDWXUDO�GLVDVWHUV�DQG�RWKHU�HYHQWV�EH\RQG�WKHLU�FRQWURO�DQG�PD\�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�DGGLWLRQDO�ULVNV�
VXFK�DV� ILQDQFLDO�SUREOHPV� WKDW� OLPLW� WKHLU�DELOLW\� WR�FRQGXFW� WKHLU�RSHUDWLRQV��7KH�ULVN�RI� WKHVH�
DGYHUVH�HIIHFWV�PD\�EH�JUHDWHU�LQ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�ZKHUH�ZH�UHO\�RQ�RQO\�RQH�RU�WZR�VXEFRQWUDFWRUV�
RU�VXSSOLHUV�IRU�D�SDUWLFXODU�UDZ�PDWHULDO��HOHFWURQLF�DQG�SODVWLF���PHWDO�PDWHULDO�FRPSRQHQWV��
�
�
We depend on third-party service providers and outsource providers for a variety of services and 
we outsource a number of our non-core functions and operations.�
,Q� FHUWDLQ� LQVWDQFHV��ZH� UHO\�RQ�VLQJOH�RU� OLPLWHG�VHUYLFH�SURYLGHUV�DQG�RXWVRXUFLQJ�YHQGRUV� LQ�
1RUWK�$PHULFD�EHFDXVH�WKH�UHODWLRQVKLS�LV�DGYDQWDJHRXV�GXH�WR�TXDOLW\��,I�SURGXFWLRQ�RU�VHUYLFH�
ZDV�LQWHUUXSWHG�DQG�ZH�ZHUH�QRW�DEOH�WR�ILQG�DOWHUQDWH�WKLUG�SDUW\�SURYLGHUV��ZH�FRXOG�H[SHULHQFH�
GLVUXSWLRQV�LQ�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV�LQFOXGLQJ�SURGXFW�VKRUWDJHV��KLJKHU�IUHLJKW�FRVWV�DQG�
UH�HQJLQHHULQJ�FRVWV��,I�RXWVRXUFLQJ�VHUYLFHV�DUH�LQWHUUXSWHG�RU�QRW�SHUIRUPHG�RU�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�
LV�SRRU��WKLV�FRXOG�LPSDFW�RXU�DELOLW\�WR�SURFHVV��UHFRUG�DQG�UHSRUW�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�RXU�FXVWRPHUV�
DQG�RWKHU�FRQVWLWXHQWV��6XFK�LQWHUUXSWLRQV�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�VXSSOLHV�DQG�RU�VHUYLFHV�FRXOG�UHVXOW�
LQ�RXU�LQDELOLW\�WR�PHHW�FXVWRPHU�GHPDQG��GDPDJH�RXU�UHSXWDWLRQ�DQG�FXVWRPHU�UHODWLRQVKLSV�DQG�
DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�RXU�EXVLQHVV��
�
�
We depend on third party providers, suppliers and licensors to supply some of the hardware, 
software and operational support necessary to provide some of our services.�
:H�REWDLQ�WKHVH�PDWHULDOV�IURP�D�OLPLWHG�QXPEHU�RI�YHQGRUV��VRPH�RI�ZKLFK�GR�QRW�KDYH�D�ORQJ�
RSHUDWLQJ�KLVWRU\��RU�ZKLFK�PD\�QRW�EH�DEOH�WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�VXSSO\�WKH�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�VHUYLFHV�ZH�
GHVLUH��6RPH�RI�RXU�KDUGZDUH��VRIWZDUH�DQG�RSHUDWLRQDO�VXSSRUW�YHQGRUV�UHSUHVHQW�RXU�VROH�VRXUFH�
RI�VXSSO\�RU�KDYH��HLWKHU�WKURXJK�FRQWUDFW�RU�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�ULJKWV��D�SRVLWLRQ�RI�
VRPH� H[FOXVLYLW\�� ,I� GHPDQG� H[FHHGV� WKHVH� YHQGRUV� ¶FDSDFLW\� RU� LI� WKHVH� YHQGRUV� H[SHULHQFH�
RSHUDWLQJ�RU�ILQDQFLDO�GLIILFXOWLHV�RU�DUH�RWKHUZLVH�XQDEOH�WR�SURYLGH�WKH�HTXLSPHQW�RU�VHUYLFHV�ZH�
QHHG�LQ�D�WLPHO\�PDQQHU��DW�RXU�VSHFLILFDWLRQV�DQG�DW�UHDVRQDEOH�SULFHV��RXU�DELOLW\�WR�SURYLGH�VRPH�
VHUYLFHV�PLJKW� EH�PDWHULDOO\� DGYHUVHO\� DIIHFWHG�� RU� WKH� QHHG� WR� SURFXUH� RU� GHYHORS� DOWHUQDWLYH�
VRXUFHV�RI�WKH�DIIHFWHG�PDWHULDOV�RU�VHUYLFHV�PLJKW�GHOD\�RXU�DELOLW\�WR�VHUYH�RXU�FXVWRPHUV��7KHVH�
HYHQWV�FRXOG�PDWHULDOO\�DQG�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�RXU�DELOLW\�WR�UHWDLQ�DQG�DWWUDFW�FXVWRPHUV��DQG�KDYH�D�
PDWHULDO�QHJDWLYH�LPSDFW�RQ�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV��EXVLQHVV��ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ��
�
�
Manufacturing or design defects, unanticipated use of our products, or inadequate disclosure 
of risks relating to the use of the products can lead to injury or other adverse events.�
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7KHVH� HYHQWV� FRXOG� OHDG� WR� UHFDOOV�RU� VDIHW\� DOHUWV� UHODWLQJ� WR�RXU�SURGXFWV� �HLWKHU�YROXQWDU\�RU�
UHTXLUHG�E\�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DXWKRULWLHV��DQG�FRXOG�UHVXOW��LQ�FHUWDLQ�FDVHV��LQ�WKH�UHPRYDO�RI�D�SURGXFW�
IURP�WKH�PDUNHW��$Q\�UHFDOO�FRXOG�UHVXOW�LQ�VLJQLILFDQW�FRVWV�DV�ZHOO�DV�QHJDWLYH�SXEOLFLW\�WKDW�FRXOG�
UHGXFH�GHPDQG�IRU�RXU�SURGXFWV��3HUVRQDO�LQMXULHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�XVH�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�FDQ�DOVR�UHVXOW�
LQ�SURGXFW�OLDELOLW\�FODLPV�EHLQJ�EURXJKW�DJDLQVW�XV��,Q�VRPH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��VXFK�DGYHUVH�HYHQWV�
FRXOG�DOVR�FDXVH�GHOD\V�LQ�QHZ�SURGXFW�DSSURYDOV��6LPLODUO\��QHJOLJHQFH�LQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�RXU�VHUYLFHV�
FDQ�OHDG�WR�LQMXU\�RU�RWKHU�DGYHUVH�HYHQWV��
�
�
In general, demand for our products and services is highly correlated with general economic 
conditions.�
$�VXEVWDQWLDO�SRUWLRQ�RI�RXU�UHYHQXH�LV�GHULYHG�IURP�GLVFUHWLRQDU\�VSHQGLQJ�E\�LQGLYLGXDOV��ZKLFK�
W\SLFDOO\�IDOOV�GXULQJ�WLPHV�RI�HFRQRPLF�LQVWDELOLW\��'HFOLQHV�LQ�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�LQ�WKH�8�6��
RU�LQ�RWKHU�FRXQWULHV�LQ�ZKLFK�ZH�RSHUDWH�PD\�DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFW�RXU�FRQVROLGDWHG�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV��
%HFDXVH�VXFK�GHFOLQHV�LQ�GHPDQG�DUH�GLIILFXOW�WR�SUHGLFW��ZH�RU�WKH�LQGXVWU\�PD\�KDYH�LQFUHDVHG�
H[FHVV�FDSDFLW\�DV�D�UHVXOW��$Q�LQFUHDVH�LQ�H[FHVV�FDSDFLW\�PD\�UHVXOW�LQ�GHFOLQHV�LQ�SULFHV�IRU�RXU�
SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV��
�
�
Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and expose us to 
liability, which would cause our business and reputation to suffer.�
:H� FROOHFW� DQG� VWRUH� VHQVLWLYH� GDWD�� LQFOXGLQJ� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\�� RXU� SURSULHWDU\� EXVLQHVV�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�WKDW�RI�RXU�FXVWRPHUV��DQG�SHUVRQDOO\�LGHQWLILDEOH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�RXU�HPSOR\HHV��
LQ�RXU�GDWD�FHQWHUV�DQG�RQ�RXU�QHWZRUNV��7KH�VHFXUH�SURFHVVLQJ��PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�WUDQVPLVVLRQ�RI�
WKLV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�FULWLFDO�WR�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�EXVLQHVV�VWUDWHJ\��'HVSLWH�RXU�VHFXULW\�PHDVXUHV��
RXU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�PD\�EH�YXOQHUDEOH�WR�DWWDFNV�E\�KDFNHUV�RU�EUHDFKHG�
GXH�WR�HPSOR\HH�HUURU��PDOIHDVDQFH�RU�RWKHU�GLVUXSWLRQV��$Q\�VXFK�EUHDFK�FRXOG�FRPSURPLVH�RXU�
QHWZRUNV�DQG�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�VWRUHG�WKHUH�FRXOG�EH�DFFHVVHG��SXEOLFO\�GLVFORVHG�� ORVW�RU�VWROHQ��
$Q\�VXFK�DFFHVV��GLVFORVXUH�RU�RWKHU�ORVV�RI�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRXOG�UHVXOW�LQ�OHJDO�FODLPV�RU�SURFHHGLQJV��
OLDELOLW\� XQGHU� ODZV� WKDW� SURWHFW� WKH� SULYDF\� RI� SHUVRQDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�� DQG� UHJXODWRU\� SHQDOWLHV��
GLVUXSW�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�WKH�VHUYLFHV�ZH�SURYLGH�WR�FXVWRPHUV��DQG�GDPDJH�RXU�UHSXWDWLRQ��DQG�
FDXVH� D� ORVV� RI� FRQILGHQFH� LQ� RXU� SURGXFWV� DQG� VHUYLFHV�� ZKLFK� FRXOG� DGYHUVHO\� DIIHFW� RXU�
EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLQJ�PDUJLQV��UHYHQXHV�DQG�FRPSHWLWLYH�SRVLWLRQ��
�
7KH� VHFXUH� SURFHVVLQJ�� PDLQWHQDQFH� DQG� WUDQVPLVVLRQ� RI� WKLV� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LV� FULWLFDO� WR� RXU�
RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�EXVLQHVV�VWUDWHJ\��DQG�ZH�GHYRWH�VLJQLILFDQW�UHVRXUFHV�WR�SURWHFWLQJ�RXU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
E\�HQVXULQJ�ZH�XWLOL]H�WKH�ODWHVW�LQ�FUHGLEOH�HQFU\SWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\��
�
�
The Company’s success depends on the experience and skill of the board of directors, its 
executive officers and key employees.�
,Q�SDUWLFXODU�� WKH�&RPSDQ\� LV�GHSHQGHQW�RQ�6LGGDUWK�$SD\D�DQG�+RSH�3DWHUVRQ�ZKR�DUH�&KLHI�
2SHUDWLQJ�2IILFHU���-DQXDU\��VW�������DQG�&KLHI�0DUNHWLQJ�2IILFHU���6HSWHPEHU���������RI� WKH�
&RPSDQ\��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�RU�LQWHQGV�WR�HQWHU�LQWR�HPSOR\PHQW�DJUHHPHQWV�ZLWK�6LGGDUWK�$SD\D�
DQG�+RSH�3DWHUVRQ�DOWKRXJK�WKHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�LW�ZLOO�GR�VR�RU�WKDW�WKH\�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�
WR�EH�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�D�SDUWLFXODU�SHULRG�RI�WLPH��7KH�ORVV�RI�6LGGDUWK�$SD\D�DQG�
+RSH� 3DWHUVRQ� RU� DQ\� PHPEHU� RI� WKH� ERDUG� RI� GLUHFWRUV� RU� H[HFXWLYH� RIILFHU� FRXOG� KDUP� WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�EXVLQHVV��ILQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ��FDVK�IORZ�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��
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�
�
We rely on various intellectual property rights, including patents and trademarks in order to 
operate our business.�
6XFK�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�ULJKWV��KRZHYHU��PD\�QRW�EH�VXIILFLHQWO\�EURDG�RU�RWKHUZLVH�PD\�QRW�
SURYLGH� XV� D� VLJQLILFDQW� FRPSHWLWLYH� DGYDQWDJH�� ,Q� DGGLWLRQ�� WKH� VWHSV� WKDW� ZH� KDYH� WDNHQ� WR�
PDLQWDLQ� DQG� SURWHFW� RXU� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� PD\� QRW� SUHYHQW� LW� IURP� EHLQJ� FKDOOHQJHG��
LQYDOLGDWHG��FLUFXPYHQWHG�RU�GHVLJQHG�DURXQG��SDUWLFXODUO\�LQ�FRXQWULHV�ZKHUH�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�
ULJKWV� DUH� QRW� KLJKO\� GHYHORSHG� RU� SURWHFWHG�� ,Q� VRPH� FLUFXPVWDQFHV�� HQIRUFHPHQW�PD\�QRW� EH�
DYDLODEOH� WR� XV� EHFDXVH� DQ� LQIULQJHU� KDV� D� GRPLQDQW� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� SRVLWLRQ� RU� IRU� RWKHU�
EXVLQHVV�UHDVRQV��RU�FRXQWULHV�PD\�UHTXLUH�FRPSXOVRU\�OLFHQVLQJ�RI�RXU�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\��2XU�
IDLOXUH� WR� REWDLQ� RU� PDLQWDLQ� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� ULJKWV� WKDW� FRQYH\� FRPSHWLWLYH� DGYDQWDJH��
DGHTXDWHO\�SURWHFW�RXU�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�RU�GHWHFW�RU�SUHYHQW�FLUFXPYHQWLRQ�RU�XQDXWKRUL]HG�XVH�
RI�VXFK�SURSHUW\��FRXOG�DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFW�RXU�FRPSHWLWLYH�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��:H�
DOVR�UHO\�RQ�QRQGLVFORVXUH�DQG�QRQFRPSHWLWLRQ�DJUHHPHQWV�ZLWK�HPSOR\HHV��FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�RWKHU�
SDUWLHV�WR�SURWHFW��LQ�SDUW��WUDGH�VHFUHWV�DQG�RWKHU�SURSULHWDU\�ULJKWV��7KHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�
WKHVH�DJUHHPHQWV�ZLOO�DGHTXDWHO\�SURWHFW�RXU�WUDGH�VHFUHWV�DQG�RWKHU�SURSULHWDU\�ULJKWV�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�
EH�EUHDFKHG��WKDW�ZH�ZLOO�KDYH�DGHTXDWH�UHPHGLHV�IRU�DQ\�EUHDFK��WKDW�RWKHUV�ZLOO�QRW�LQGHSHQGHQWO\�
GHYHORS�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�HTXLYDOHQW�SURSULHWDU\� LQIRUPDWLRQ�RU� WKDW� WKLUG�SDUWLHV�ZLOO�QRW�RWKHUZLVH�
JDLQ�DFFHVV�WR�RXU�WUDGH�VHFUHWV�RU�RWKHU�SURSULHWDU\�ULJKWV��
�
$V� ZH� H[SDQG� RXU� EXVLQHVV�� SURWHFWLQJ� RXU� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� ZLOO� EHFRPH� LQFUHDVLQJO\�
LPSRUWDQW��7KH�SURWHFWLYH�VWHSV�ZH�KDYH�WDNHQ�PD\�EH�LQDGHTXDWH�WR�GHWHU�RXU�FRPSHWLWRUV�IURP�
XVLQJ�RXU�SURSULHWDU\� LQIRUPDWLRQ�� ,Q�RUGHU� WR�SURWHFW�RU� HQIRUFH�RXU�SDWHQW� ULJKWV��ZH�PD\�EH�
UHTXLUHG�WR�LQLWLDWH�OLWLJDWLRQ�DJDLQVW�WKLUG�SDUWLHV��VXFK�DV�LQIULQJHPHQW�ODZVXLWV��$OVR��WKHVH�WKLUG�
SDUWLHV� PD\� DVVHUW� FODLPV� DJDLQVW� XV� ZLWK� RU� ZLWKRXW� SURYRFDWLRQ�� 7KHVH� ODZVXLWV� FRXOG� EH�
H[SHQVLYH�� WDNH� VLJQLILFDQW� WLPH� DQG� FRXOG� GLYHUW�PDQDJHPHQW¶V� DWWHQWLRQ� IURP� RWKHU� EXVLQHVV�
FRQFHUQV��7KH�ODZ�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�VFRSH�DQG�YDOLGLW\�RI�FODLPV�LQ�WKH�WHFKQRORJ\�ILHOG�LQ�ZKLFK�ZH�
RSHUDWH� LV� VWLOO� HYROYLQJ� DQG�� FRQVHTXHQWO\�� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� SRVLWLRQV� LQ� RXU� LQGXVWU\� DUH�
JHQHUDOO\�XQFHUWDLQ��:H�FDQQRW�DVVXUH�\RX�WKDW�ZH�ZLOO�SUHYDLO�LQ�DQ\�RI�WKHVH�SRWHQWLDO�VXLWV�RU�
WKDW�WKH�GDPDJHV�RU�RWKHU�UHPHGLHV�DZDUGHG��LI�DQ\��ZRXOG�EH�FRPPHUFLDOO\�YDOXDEOH��
�
�
From time to time, third parties may claim that one or more of our products or services infringe 
their intellectual property rights.�
$Q\�GLVSXWH�RU�OLWLJDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�SDWHQWV�RU�RWKHU�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�FRXOG�EH�FRVWO\�DQG�WLPH�
FRQVXPLQJ� GXH� WR� WKH� XQFHUWDLQW\� RI� LQWHOOHFWXDO� SURSHUW\� OLWLJDWLRQ� DQG� FRXOG� GLYHUW� RXU�
PDQDJHPHQW� DQG�NH\�SHUVRQQHO� IURP�RXU�EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV��$�FODLP�RI� LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�
LQIULQJHPHQW�FRXOG�IRUFH�XV�WR�HQWHU�LQWR�D�FRVWO\�RU�UHVWULFWLYH�OLFHQVH�DJUHHPHQW��ZKLFK�PLJKW�QRW�
EH�DYDLODEOH�XQGHU�DFFHSWDEOH� WHUPV�RU�DW�DOO�� FRXOG� UHTXLUH�XV� WR� UHGHVLJQ�RXU�SURGXFWV��ZKLFK�
ZRXOG�EH�FRVWO\�DQG�WLPH�FRQVXPLQJ��DQG�RU�FRXOG�VXEMHFW�XV�WR�DQ�LQMXQFWLRQ�DJDLQVW�GHYHORSPHQW�
DQG�VDOH�RI�FHUWDLQ�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�RU�VHUYLFHV��:H�PD\�KDYH�WR�SD\�VXEVWDQWLDO�GDPDJHV��LQFOXGLQJ�
GDPDJHV�IRU�SDVW�LQIULQJHPHQW�LI�LW�LV�XOWLPDWHO\�GHWHUPLQHG�WKDW�RXU�SURGXFWV�LQIULQJH�RQ�D�WKLUG�
SDUW\¶V� SURSULHWDU\� ULJKWV�� (YHQ� LI� WKHVH� FODLPV� DUH� ZLWKRXW� PHULW�� GHIHQGLQJ� D� ODZVXLW� WDNHV�
VLJQLILFDQW�WLPH��PD\�EH�H[SHQVLYH�DQG�PD\�GLYHUW�PDQDJHPHQW¶V�DWWHQWLRQ�IURP�RWKHU�EXVLQHVV�
FRQFHUQV��$Q\�SXEOLF�DQQRXQFHPHQWV�UHODWHG�WR�OLWLJDWLRQ�RU�LQWHUIHUHQFH�SURFHHGLQJV�LQLWLDWHG�RU�
WKUHDWHQHG�DJDLQVW�XV�FRXOG�FDXVH�RXU�EXVLQHVV�WR�EH�KDUPHG��2XU�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�SRUWIROLR�
PD\�QRW�EH�XVHIXO�LQ�DVVHUWLQJ�D�FRXQWHUFODLP��RU�QHJRWLDWLQJ�D�OLFHQVH��LQ�UHVSRQVH�WR�D�FODLP�RI�
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LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�LQIULQJHPHQW��,Q�FHUWDLQ�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVVHV�ZH�UHO\�RQ�WKLUG�SDUW\�LQWHOOHFWXDO�
SURSHUW\�OLFHQVHV�DQG�ZH�FDQQRW�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKHVH�OLFHQVHV�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�WR�XV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�RQ�
IDYRUDEOH�WHUPV�RU�DW�DOO��
�
�
Although dependent on certain key personnel, the Company does not have any life insurance 
policies on any such personnel.�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� LV� GHSHQGHQW� RQ� 6LGGDUWK� $SD\D� DQG� +RSH� 3DWHUVRQ� LQ� RUGHU� WR� FRQGXFW� LWV�
RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�H[HFXWH�LWV�EXVLQHVV�SODQ��KRZHYHU��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�SXUFKDVHG�DQ\�LQVXUDQFH�
SROLFLHV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKRVH�LQGLYLGXDOV�LQ�WKH�HYHQW�RI�WKHLU�GHDWK�RU�GLVDELOLW\��7KHUHIRUH��LI�DQ\�
RI�6LGGDUWK�$SD\D�DQG�+RSH�3DWHUVRQ�GLH�RU�EHFRPH�GLVDEOHG��WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�QRW�UHFHLYH�DQ\�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ�WR�DVVLVW�ZLWK�VXFK�SHUVRQ¶V�DEVHQFH��7KH�ORVV�RI�VXFK�SHUVRQ�FRXOG�QHJDWLYHO\�DIIHFW�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�LWV�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
�
We have no audited financial statements as we are a pre-revenue business.�
7KHUHIRUH��\RX�KDYH�QR�DXGLWHG�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FDSLWDOL]DWLRQ�RU�
DVVHWV� RU� OLDELOLWLHV� RQ� ZKLFK� WR� PDNH� \RXU� LQYHVWPHQW� GHFLVLRQ�� ,I� \RX� IHHO� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ�
SURYLGHG�LV�LQVXIILFLHQW��\RX�VKRXOG�QRW�LQYHVW�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
�
We are subject to income taxes as well as non-income based taxes, such as payroll, sales, use, 
value-added, net worth, property and goods and services taxes, in both the U.S. and various 
foreign jurisdictions.�
6LJQLILFDQW� MXGJPHQW� LV� UHTXLUHG� LQ� GHWHUPLQLQJ� RXU� SURYLVLRQ� IRU� LQFRPH� WD[HV� DQG� RWKHU� WD[�
OLDELOLWLHV�� ,Q� WKH�RUGLQDU\� FRXUVH�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVV�� WKHUH�DUH�PDQ\� WUDQVDFWLRQV�DQG�FDOFXODWLRQV�
ZKHUH�WKH�XOWLPDWH�WD[�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�LV�XQFHUWDLQ��$OWKRXJK�ZH�EHOLHYH�WKDW�RXU�WD[�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�
UHDVRQDEOH���L��WKHUH�LV�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKH�ILQDO�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�WD[�DXGLWV�RU�WD[�GLVSXWHV�ZLOO�
QRW�EH�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�ZKDW�LV�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�RXU�LQFRPH�WD[�SURYLVLRQV��H[SHQVH�DPRXQWV�IRU�QRQ�
LQFRPH�EDVHG�WD[HV�DQG�DFFUXDOV�DQG��LL��DQ\�PDWHULDO�GLIIHUHQFHV�FRXOG�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�RQ�
RXU�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�RU�SHULRGV�IRU�ZKLFK�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�LV�
PDGH��
�
�
We are not subject to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and lack the financial controls and safeguards 
required of public companies.�
:H� GR� QRW� KDYH� WKH� LQWHUQDO� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� QHFHVVDU\�� DQG� DUH� QRW� UHTXLUHG�� WR� FRPSOHWH� DQ�
DWWHVWDWLRQ�DERXW�RXU�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�6DUEDQHV�
2[OH\�$FW�RI�������7KHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�QR�VLJQLILFDQW�GHILFLHQFLHV�RU�PDWHULDO�
ZHDNQHVVHV�LQ�WKH�TXDOLW\�RI�RXU�ILQDQFLDO�FRQWUROV��:H�H[SHFW�WR�LQFXU�DGGLWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV�DQG�
GLYHUVLRQ� RI�PDQDJHPHQW¶V� WLPH� LI� DQG�ZKHQ� LW� EHFRPHV� QHFHVVDU\� WR� SHUIRUP� WKH� V\VWHP� DQG�
SURFHVV� HYDOXDWLRQ�� WHVWLQJ� DQG� UHPHGLDWLRQ� UHTXLUHG� LQ� RUGHU� WR� FRPSO\�ZLWK� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�
FHUWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�DXGLWRU�DWWHVWDWLRQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV��
�
�
Changes in employment laws or regulation could harm our performance.�
9DULRXV� IHGHUDO� DQG� VWDWH� ODERU� ODZV� JRYHUQ� RXU� UHODWLRQVKLS� ZLWK� RXU� HPSOR\HHV� DQG� DIIHFW�
RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV��7KHVH�ODZV�LQFOXGH�PLQLPXP�ZDJH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��RYHUWLPH�SD\��KHDOWKFDUH�UHIRUP�
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DQG� WKH� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� RI� WKH�3DWLHQW�3URWHFWLRQ� DQG�$IIRUGDEOH�&DUH�$FW�� XQHPSOR\PHQW� WD[�
UDWHV��ZRUNHUV�¶FRPSHQVDWLRQ�UDWHV��FLWL]HQVKLS�UHTXLUHPHQWV��XQLRQ�PHPEHUVKLS�DQG�VDOHV�WD[HV��
$�QXPEHU�RI�IDFWRUV�FRXOG�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�RXU�RSHUDWLQJ�UHVXOWV��LQFOXGLQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�JRYHUQPHQW�
LPSRVHG�LQFUHDVHV�LQ�PLQLPXP�ZDJHV��RYHUWLPH�SD\��SDLG�OHDYHV�RI�DEVHQFH�DQG�PDQGDWHG�KHDOWK�
EHQHILWV�� PDQGDWHG� WUDLQLQJ� IRU� HPSOR\HHV�� LQFUHDVHG� WD[� UHSRUWLQJ� DQG� WD[� SD\PHQW� FKDQJLQJ�
UHJXODWLRQV�IURP�WKH�1DWLRQDO�/DERU�5HODWLRQV�%RDUG�DQG�LQFUHDVHG�HPSOR\HH�OLWLJDWLRQ�LQFOXGLQJ�
FODLPV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�)DLU�/DERU�6WDQGDUGV�$FW��
�
�
The Company’s business operations may be materially affected by a pandemic such as the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak from potential supply related issues.�
,Q�'HFHPEHU�������D�QRYHO�VWUDLQ�RI�FRURQDYLUXV�ZDV�UHSRUWHG�WR�KDYH�VXUIDFHG�LQ�:XKDQ��&KLQD��
ZKLFK�VSUHDG� WKURXJKRXW�RWKHU�SDUWV�RI� WKH�ZRUOG�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV��2Q�-DQXDU\�����
������WKH�:RUOG�+HDOWK�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�GHFODUHG�WKH�RXWEUHDN�RI�WKH�FRURQDYLUXV�GLVHDVH��&29,'�
����D�³3XEOLF�+HDOWK�(PHUJHQF\�RI�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�&RQFHUQ�´�2Q�-DQXDU\�����������8�6��+HDOWK�DQG�
+XPDQ�6HUYLFHV�6HFUHWDU\�$OH[�0��$]DU� ,,�GHFODUHG�D�SXEOLF�KHDOWK�HPHUJHQF\� IRU� WKH�8QLWHG�
6WDWHV�WR�DLG�WKH�8�6��KHDOWKFDUH�FRPPXQLW\�LQ�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�&29,'�����DQG�RQ�0DUFK����������
WKH�:RUOG�+HDOWK�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�FKDUDFWHUL]HG�WKH�RXWEUHDN�DV�D�³SDQGHPLF�´�&29,'����UHVXOWHG�LQ�
D�ZLGHVSUHDG�KHDOWK�FULVLV�WKDW�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG�WKH�HFRQRPLHV�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�PDUNHWV�ZRUOGZLGH��
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�EXVLQHVV�FRXOG�EH�PDWHULDOO\�DQG�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG��7KH�H[WHQW�WR�ZKLFK�&29,'�
��� LPSDFWV� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� EXVLQHVV� ZLOO� GHSHQG� RQ� IXWXUH� GHYHORSPHQWV�� ZKLFK� DUH� KLJKO\�
XQFHUWDLQ�DQG�FDQQRW�EH�SUHGLFWHG��LQFOXGLQJ�QHZ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZKLFK�PD\�HPHUJH�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�
VHYHULW\�RI�&29,'����DQG�WKH�DFWLRQV�WR�FRQWDLQ�&29,'����RU�WUHDW�LWV�LPSDFW��DPRQJ�RWKHUV��,I�
WKH�GLVUXSWLRQV�SRVHG�E\�&29,'����RU�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�RI�JOREDO�FRQFHUQ�FRQWLQXH�IRU�DQ�H[WHQGHG�
SHULRG�RI�WLPH��WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RSHUDWLRQV�PD\�EH�PDWHULDOO\�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG��
�
�
We face risks related to health epidemics and other outbreaks, which could significantly disrupt 
the Company’s operations and could have a material adverse impact on us.�
7KH�RXWEUHDN�RI�SDQGHPLFV�DQG�HSLGHPLFV�FRXOG�PDWHULDOO\�DQG�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
EXVLQHVV��ILQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ��DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��,I�D�SDQGHPLF�RFFXUV�LQ�DUHDV�LQ�ZKLFK�ZH�
KDYH�PDWHULDO� RSHUDWLRQV� RU� VDOHV�� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V� EXVLQHVV� DFWLYLWLHV� RULJLQDWLQJ� IURP� DIIHFWHG�
DUHDV��LQFOXGLQJ�VDOHV��PDWHULDOV��DQG�VXSSO\�FKDLQ�UHODWHG�DFWLYLWLHV��FRXOG�EH�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFWHG��
'LVUXSWLYH�DFWLYLWLHV�FRXOG�LQFOXGH�WKH�WHPSRUDU\�FORVXUH�RI�IDFLOLWLHV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VXSSO\�
FKDLQ�SURFHVVHV��UHVWULFWLRQV�RQ�WKH�H[SRUW�RU�VKLSPHQW�RI�SURGXFWV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�UXQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
EXVLQHVV��EXVLQHVV�FORVXUHV�LQ�LPSDFWHG�DUHDV��DQG�UHVWULFWLRQV�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�HPSOR\HHV� ¶RU�
FRQVXOWDQWV�¶DELOLW\�WR�WUDYHO�DQG�WR�PHHW�ZLWK�FXVWRPHUV��YHQGRUV�RU�RWKHU�EXVLQHVV�UHODWLRQVKLSV��
7KH� H[WHQW� WR�ZKLFK� D� SDQGHPLF� RU� RWKHU� KHDOWK� RXWEUHDN� LPSDFWV� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V� UHVXOWV�ZLOO�
GHSHQG�RQ�IXWXUH�GHYHORSPHQWV��ZKLFK�DUH�KLJKO\�XQFHUWDLQ�DQG�FDQQRW�EH�SUHGLFWHG�� LQFOXGLQJ�
QHZ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZKLFK�PD\�HPHUJH�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�VHYHULW\�RI�D�YLUXV�DQG�WKH�DFWLRQV�WR�FRQWDLQ�
LW� RU� WUHDW� LWV� LPSDFW�� DPRQJ� RWKHUV�� 3DQGHPLFV� FDQ� DOVR� UHVXOW� LQ� VRFLDO�� HFRQRPLF�� DQG� ODERU�
LQVWDELOLW\�ZKLFK�PD\�DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�EXVLQHVV��
�
,I� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� HPSOR\HHV� RU� HPSOR\HHV� RI� DQ\� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� YHQGRUV�� VXSSOLHUV� RU�
FXVWRPHUV�EHFRPH�LOO�RU�DUH�TXDUDQWLQHG�DQG�LQ�HLWKHU�RU�ERWK�HYHQWV�DUH�WKHUHIRUH�XQDEOH�WR�ZRUN��
WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RSHUDWLRQV�FRXOG�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�GLVUXSWLRQ��7KH�H[WHQW�WR�ZKLFK�D�SDQGHPLF�DIIHFWV�
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WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�GHSHQG�RQ�IXWXUH�GHYHORSPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�KLJKO\�XQFHUWDLQ�DQG�FDQQRW�EH�
SUHGLFWHG��
�
�
Substantial disruption to production at our manufacturing and distribution facilities could 
occur.�
$� GLVUXSWLRQ� LQ� SURGXFWLRQ� DW� RXU� PDQXIDFWXULQJ� IDFLOLW\� RU� DW� RXU� WKLUG�SDUW\� PDQXIDFWXULQJ�
IDFLOLWLHV�FRXOG�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�RQ�RXU�EXVLQHVV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��D�GLVUXSWLRQ�FRXOG�RFFXU�DW�WKH�
IDFLOLWLHV�RI�RXU�VXSSOLHUV�RU�GLVWULEXWRUV��7KH�GLVUXSWLRQ�FRXOG�RFFXU�IRU�PDQ\�UHDVRQV��LQFOXGLQJ�
ILUH�� QDWXUDO� GLVDVWHUV�� ZHDWKHU�� ZDWHU� VFDUFLW\�� PDQXIDFWXULQJ� SUREOHPV�� GLVHDVH�� VWULNHV��
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RU�VXSSO\�LQWHUUXSWLRQ��JRYHUQPHQW�UHJXODWLRQ��F\EHUVHFXULW\�DWWDFNV�RU�WHUURULVP��
$OWHUQDWLYH� IDFLOLWLHV� ZLWK� VXIILFLHQW� FDSDFLW\� RU� FDSDELOLWLHV� PD\� QRW� EH� DYDLODEOH�� PD\� FRVW�
VXEVWDQWLDOO\� PRUH� RU� PD\� WDNH� D� VLJQLILFDQW� WLPH� WR� VWDUW� SURGXFWLRQ�� HDFK� RI� ZKLFK� FRXOG�
QHJDWLYHO\�DIIHFW�RXU�EXVLQHVV�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
�
Future product recalls or safety concerns could adversely impact our results of operations.�
:H�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHFDOO�FHUWDLQ�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�VKRXOG�WKH\�EH�PLVODEHOHG��FRQWDPLQDWHG��
VSRLOHG�� WDPSHUHG� ZLWK� RU� GDPDJHG�� :H� DOVR� PD\� EHFRPH� LQYROYHG� LQ� ODZVXLWV� DQG� OHJDO�
SURFHHGLQJV�LI�LW�LV�DOOHJHG�WKDW�WKH�FRQVXPSWLRQ�RU�XVH�RI�DQ\�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�FDXVHV�LQMXU\��LOOQHVV�
RU�GHDWK��$�SURGXFW�UHFDOO�RU�DQ�DGYHUVH�UHVXOW�LQ�DQ\�VXFK�OLWLJDWLRQ�FRXOG�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�
RQ� RXU� EXVLQHVV�� GHSHQGLQJ� RQ� WKH� FRVWV� RI� WKH� UHFDOO�� WKH� GHVWUXFWLRQ� RI� SURGXFW� LQYHQWRU\��
FRPSHWLWLYH�UHDFWLRQ�DQG�FRQVXPHU�DWWLWXGHV��(YHQ�LI�D�SURGXFW�OLDELOLW\�RU�FRQVXPHU�IUDXG�FODLP�
LV�XQVXFFHVVIXO�RU�ZLWKRXW�PHULW��WKH�QHJDWLYH�SXEOLFLW\�VXUURXQGLQJ�VXFK�DVVHUWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�RXU�
SURGXFWV� FRXOG� DGYHUVHO\� DIIHFW� RXU� UHSXWDWLRQ� DQG� EUDQG� LPDJH��:H� DOVR� FRXOG� EH� DGYHUVHO\�
DIIHFWHG� LI�FRQVXPHUV� LQ�RXU�SULQFLSDO�PDUNHWV� ORVH�FRQILGHQFH� LQ� WKH�VDIHW\�DQG�TXDOLW\�RI�RXU�
SURGXFWV��
�
�
Evolving tax, environmental, food quality and safety or other regulations or failure to comply 
with existing licensing, labeling, trade, food quality and safety and other regulations and laws 
could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition.�
2XU�DFWLYLWLHV�RU�SURGXFWV��ERWK�LQ�DQG�RXWVLGH�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV��DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�UHJXODWLRQ�E\�
YDULRXV�IHGHUDO��VWDWH��SURYLQFLDO�DQG�ORFDO�ODZV��UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�JRYHUQPHQW�DJHQFLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�
WKH�8�6��)RRG�DQG�'UXJ�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��8�6��)HGHUDO�7UDGH�&RPPLVVLRQ��WKH�8�6��'HSDUWPHQWV�
RI�$JULFXOWXUH��&RPPHUFH�DQG�/DERU��DV�ZHOO�DV�VLPLODU�DQG�RWKHU�DXWKRULWLHV�RXWVLGH�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�
6WDWHV�� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO�$FFRUGV� DQG� 7UHDWLHV� DQG� RWKHUV�� LQFOXGLQJ� YROXQWDU\� UHJXODWLRQ� E\� RWKHU�
ERGLHV�� 7KHVH� ODZV� DQG� UHJXODWLRQV� DQG� LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV� WKHUHRI� PD\� FKDQJH�� VRPHWLPHV�
GUDPDWLFDOO\��DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�D�YDULHW\�RI�IDFWRUV��LQFOXGLQJ�SROLWLFDO��HFRQRPLF�RU�VRFLDO�HYHQWV��7KH�
PDQXIDFWXULQJ��PDUNHWLQJ�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI�IRRG�SURGXFWV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�JRYHUQPHQWDO�UHJXODWLRQ�
WKDW�FRQWURO�VXFK�PDWWHUV�DV�IRRG�TXDOLW\�DQG�VDIHW\��LQJUHGLHQWV��DGYHUWLVLQJ��SURGXFW�RU�SURGXFWLRQ�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��ODEHOLQJ��LPSRUW�RU�H[SRUW�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV�RU�LQJUHGLHQWV��UHODWLRQV�ZLWK�GLVWULEXWRUV�
DQG� UHWDLOHUV�� KHDOWK� DQG� VDIHW\�� WKH� HQYLURQPHQW�� DQG� UHVWULFWLRQV� RQ� WKH� XVH� RI� JRYHUQPHQW�
SURJUDPV�WR�SXUFKDVH�FHUWDLQ�RI�RXU�SURGXFWV��:H�DUH�DOVR�UHJXODWHG�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�PDWWHUV�VXFK�
DV�OLFHQVLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�� WUDGH�DQG�SULFLQJ�SUDFWLFHV�� WD[��DQWLFRUUXSWLRQ�VWDQGDUGV��DGYHUWLVLQJ�
DQG�FODLPV��DQG�HQYLURQPHQWDO�PDWWHUV��7KH�QHHG�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�QHZ��HYROYLQJ�RU�UHYLVHG�WD[��
HQYLURQPHQWDO��IRRG�TXDOLW\�DQG�VDIHW\��ODEHOLQJ�RU�RWKHU�ODZV�RU�UHJXODWLRQV��RU�QHZ��RU�FKDQJHG�
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�RU�HQIRUFHPHQW�RI�H[LVWLQJ�ODZV�RU�UHJXODWLRQV��PD\�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�RQ�RXU�
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EXVLQHVV�DQG�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��)XUWKHU��LI�ZH�DUH�IRXQG�WR�EH�RXW�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�
ODZV� DQG� UHJXODWLRQV� LQ� WKHVH� DUHDV�� ZH� FRXOG� EH� VXEMHFW� WR� FLYLO� UHPHGLHV�� LQFOXGLQJ� ILQHV��
LQMXQFWLRQV��WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�QHFHVVDU\�OLFHQVHV�RU�SHUPLWV��RU�UHFDOOV��DV�ZHOO�DV�SRWHQWLDO�FULPLQDO�
VDQFWLRQV��DQ\�RI�ZKLFK�FRXOG�KDYH�DQ�DGYHUVH�HIIHFW�RQ�RXU�EXVLQHVV��(YHQ�LI�UHJXODWRU\�UHYLHZ�
GRHV�QRW�UHVXOW�LQ�WKHVH�W\SHV�RI�GHWHUPLQDWLRQV��LW�FRXOG�SRWHQWLDOO\�FUHDWH�QHJDWLYH�SXEOLFLW\�RU�
SHUFHSWLRQV�ZKLFK�FRXOG�KDUP�RXU�EXVLQHVV�RU�UHSXWDWLRQ��
�
�
Significant additional labeling or warning requirements may inhibit sales of affected products.�
9DULRXV� MXULVGLFWLRQV� PD\� VHHN� WR� DGRSW� VLJQLILFDQW� DGGLWLRQDO� SURGXFW� ODEHOLQJ� RU� ZDUQLQJ�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�FRQWHQW�RU�SHUFHLYHG�DGYHUVH�KHDOWK�FRQVHTXHQFHV�RI�RXU�SURGXFW�V���
,I� WKHVH� W\SHV� RI� UHTXLUHPHQWV� EHFRPH� DSSOLFDEOH� WR� RXU� SURGXFW�V�� XQGHU� FXUUHQW� RU� IXWXUH�
HQYLURQPHQWDO�RU�KHDOWK�ODZV�RU�UHJXODWLRQV��WKH\�PD\�LQKLELW�VDOHV�RI�VXFK�SURGXFWV��
�
�
5LVNV�5HODWHG�WR�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��
�
The Convertible Notes will not be freely tradable until one year from the initial purchase date. 
Although the Convertible Notes may be tradable under federal securities law, state securities 
regulations may apply and each Purchaser should consult with his or her attorney.�
<RX�VKRXOG�EH�DZDUH�RI�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�QDWXUH�RI�WKLV�LQYHVWPHQW���7KHUH�LV�QRW�QRZ�DQG�OLNHO\�ZLOO�
QRW�EH�D�SXEOLF�PDUNHW�IRU�WKH�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV���%HFDXVH�WKH�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�
UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RU�XQGHU�WKH�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV�RI�DQ\�VWDWH�RU�QRQ�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�
MXULVGLFWLRQ��WKH�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�KDYH�WUDQVIHU�UHVWULFWLRQV�DQG�FDQQRW�EH�UHVROG�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�
6WDWHV� H[FHSW� SXUVXDQW� WR� 5XOH� ���� RI� 5HJXODWLRQ� &)�� � ,W� LV� QRW� FXUUHQWO\� FRQWHPSODWHG� WKDW�
UHJLVWUDWLRQ�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RU�RWKHU�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV�ZLOO�EH�HIIHFWHG��/LPLWDWLRQV�RQ�WKH�
WUDQVIHU�RI� WKH�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�PD\�DOVR�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW� WKH�SULFH�WKDW�\RX�PLJKW�EH�DEOH�WR�
REWDLQ�IRU�WKH�&RQYHUWLEOH�1RWHV�LQ�D�SULYDWH�VDOH��3XUFKDVHUV�VKRXOG�EH�DZDUH�RI�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�
QDWXUH�RI�WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\���(DFK�3XUFKDVHU�LQ�WKLV�2IIHULQJ�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�
UHSUHVHQW�WKDW�LW�LV�SXUFKDVLQJ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�IRU�LWV�RZQ�DFFRXQW��IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�SXUSRVHV�DQG�QRW�
ZLWK�D�YLHZ�WR�UHVDOH�RU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�WKHUHRI��
�
Neither the Offering nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state securities 
laws, leading to an absence of certain regulation applicable to the Company.�
1R� JRYHUQPHQWDO� DJHQF\� KDV� UHYLHZHG� RU� SDVVHG� XSRQ� WKLV� 2IIHULQJ�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� RU� DQ\�
6HFXULWLHV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� 7KH� &RPSDQ\� DOVR� KDV� UHOLHG� RQ� H[HPSWLRQV� IURP� VHFXULWLHV�
UHJLVWUDWLRQ� UHTXLUHPHQWV� XQGHU� DSSOLFDEOH� VWDWH� VHFXULWLHV� ODZV�� ,QYHVWRUV� LQ� WKH� &RPSDQ\��
WKHUHIRUH��ZLOO� QRW� UHFHLYH� DQ\� RI� WKH� EHQHILWV� WKDW� VXFK� UHJLVWUDWLRQ�ZRXOG� RWKHUZLVH� SURYLGH��
3URVSHFWLYH�LQYHVWRUV�PXVW�WKHUHIRUH�DVVHVV�WKH�DGHTXDF\�RI�GLVFORVXUH�DQG�WKH�IDLUQHVV�RI�WKH�WHUPV�
RI�WKLV�2IIHULQJ�RQ�WKHLU�RZQ�RU�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKHLU�SHUVRQDO�DGYLVRUV��
�
No Guarantee of Return on Investment��
7KHUH�LV�QR�DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�D�3XUFKDVHU�ZLOO�UHDOL]H�D�UHWXUQ�RQ�LWV�LQYHVWPHQW�RU�WKDW�LW�ZLOO�QRW�ORVH�
LWV�HQWLUH� LQYHVWPHQW��)RU� WKLV� UHDVRQ��HDFK�3XUFKDVHU� VKRXOG� UHDG� WKH�)RUP�&�DQG�DOO�([KLELWV�
FDUHIXOO\� DQG� VKRXOG� FRQVXOW� ZLWK� LWV� RZQ� DWWRUQH\� DQG� EXVLQHVV� DGYLVRU� SULRU� WR�PDNLQJ� DQ\�
LQYHVWPHQW�GHFLVLRQ��
�
A majority of the Company is owned by a small number of owners.�



�

����
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������

3ULRU�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FXUUHQW�RZQHUV�RI�����RU�PRUH�EHQHILFLDOO\�RZQ�XS�WR�������
RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\��6XEMHFW� WR� DQ\� ILGXFLDU\� GXWLHV� RZHG� WR� RXU� RWKHU� RZQHUV� RU� LQYHVWRUV� XQGHU�
:\RPLQJ�ODZ��WKHVH�RZQHUV�PD\�EH�DEOH�WR�H[HUFLVH�VLJQLILFDQW�LQIOXHQFH�RYHU�PDWWHUV�UHTXLULQJ�
RZQHU� DSSURYDO�� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� HOHFWLRQ� RI� � GLUHFWRUV� RU� PDQDJHUV� DQG� DSSURYDO� RI� VLJQLILFDQW�
&RPSDQ\� WUDQVDFWLRQV�� DQG�ZLOO� KDYH� VLJQLILFDQW� FRQWURO�RYHU� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW� DQG�
SROLFLHV��6RPH�RI� WKHVH�SHUVRQV�PD\�KDYH� LQWHUHVWV� WKDW�DUH�GLIIHUHQW� IURP�\RXUV��)RU�H[DPSOH��
WKHVH�RZQHUV�PD\�VXSSRUW�SURSRVDOV�DQG�DFWLRQV�ZLWK�ZKLFK�\RX�PD\�GLVDJUHH��7KH�FRQFHQWUDWLRQ�
RI�RZQHUVKLS�FRXOG�GHOD\�RU�SUHYHQW�D�FKDQJH�LQ�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�RWKHUZLVH�GLVFRXUDJH�
D�SRWHQWLDO�DFTXLUHU�IURP�DWWHPSWLQJ�WR�REWDLQ�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��ZKLFK�LQ�WXUQ�FRXOG�UHGXFH�
WKH�SULFH�SRWHQWLDO�LQYHVWRUV�DUH�ZLOOLQJ�WR�SD\�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKHVH�RZQHUV�FRXOG�
XVH� WKHLU� YRWLQJ� LQIOXHQFH� WR� PDLQWDLQ� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� H[LVWLQJ� PDQDJHPHQW�� GHOD\� RU� SUHYHQW�
FKDQJHV�LQ�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��RU�VXSSRUW�RU�UHMHFW�RWKHU�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�ERDUG�SURSRVDOV�
WKDW�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�RZQHU�DSSURYDO��
�
The Company has the right to extend the Offering deadline.�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�PD\� H[WHQG� WKH�2IIHULQJ� GHDGOLQH� EH\RQG�ZKDW� LV� FXUUHQWO\� VWDWHG� KHUHLQ�� 7KLV�
PHDQV�WKDW�\RXU�LQYHVWPHQW�PD\�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�KHOG�LQ�HVFURZ�ZKLOH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DWWHPSWV�WR�
UDLVH� WKH� 0LQLPXP� $PRXQW� HYHQ� DIWHU� WKH� 2IIHULQJ� GHDGOLQH� VWDWHG� KHUHLQ� LV� UHDFKHG�� <RXU�
LQYHVWPHQW�ZLOO�QRW�EH�DFFUXLQJ�LQWHUHVW�GXULQJ�WKLV�WLPH�DQG�ZLOO�VLPSO\�EH�KHOG�XQWLO�VXFK�WLPH�DV�
WKH�QHZ�2IIHULQJ�GHDGOLQH�LV�UHDFKHG�ZLWKRXW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW��DW�
ZKLFK�WLPH�LW�ZLOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�\RX�ZLWKRXW�LQWHUHVW�RU�GHGXFWLRQ��RU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�UHFHLYHV�WKH�
0LQLPXP�$PRXQW��DW�ZKLFK�WLPH�LW�ZLOO�EH�UHOHDVHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�EH�XVHG�DV�VHW�IRUWK�KHUHLQ��
8SRQ�RU� VKRUWO\� DIWHU� UHOHDVH�RI� VXFK� IXQGV� WR� WKH�&RPSDQ\�� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO� EH� LVVXHG�DQG�
GLVWULEXWHG�WR�\RX��
�
�
The Securities will be effectively subordinate to any of our debt that is secured.�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�EH�XQVHFXUHG��XQJXDUDQWHHG�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�ZLOO�EH�HIIHFWLYHO\�
VXERUGLQDWHG�WR�DQ\�SUHVHQW�RU�IXWXUH�VHFXUHG�RU�XQVHFXUHG�GHEW�REOLJDWLRQV�WR�EDQNV��FRPPHUFLDO�
ILQDQFH�OHQGHUV�RU�RWKHU�LQVWLWXWLRQV�UHJXODUO\�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�EXVLQHVV�RI�OHQGHU�PRQH\��³6HQLRU�
'HEW´��WKDW�ZH�PD\�LQFXU�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�RI�WKH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�VHFXULQJ�WKDW�GHEW��
7KH�HIIHFW�RI�WKLV�VXERUGLQDWLRQ�LV�WKDW�LI�ZH�DUH�LQYROYHG�LQ�D�EDQNUXSWF\��OLTXLGDWLRQ��GLVVROXWLRQ��
UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ�RU�VLPLODU�SURFHHGLQJ��RU�XSRQ�D�GHIDXOW�LQ�SD\PHQW�RQ��RU�WKH�DFFHOHUDWLRQ�RI��DQ\�
6HQLRU�'HEW��LI�DQ\��RXU�DVVHWV�WKDW�VHFXUH�VXFK�GHEW�ZLOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�WR�SD\�REOLJDWLRQV�RQ�WKH�
6HFXULWLHV�RQO\�DIWHU�DOO�GHEW�XQGHU�RXU�6HQLRU�'HEW��LI�DQ\��KDV�EHHQ�SDLG�LQ�IXOO�IURP�WKRVH�DVVHWV��
+ROGHUV� RI� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO� SDUWLFLSDWH� LQ� DQ\� UHPDLQLQJ� DVVHWV� UDWDEO\�ZLWK� DOO� RI� RXU� RWKHU�
XQVHFXUHG�DQG�XQVXERUGLQDWHG�FUHGLWRUV�� LQFOXGLQJ� WUDGH�FUHGLWRUV��:H�PD\�QRW�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW�
DVVHWV�UHPDLQLQJ�WR�SD\�DPRXQWV�GXH�RQ�DQ\�RU�DOO�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�WKHQ�RXWVWDQGLQJ��
�
We are permitted to incur more debt, which may increase our risk of the inability to pay interest 
and principal on the Securities when it comes due.�
:H�DUH�QRW�UHVWULFWHG�IURP�LQFXUULQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�VHFXUHG�RU�XQVHFXUHG�GHEW�RU�RWKHU�OLDELOLWLHV��,I�ZH�
LQFXU�DGGLWLRQDO�GHEW�RU�OLDELOLWLHV��\RXU�VHFXULW\�PD\�EH�VXERUGLQDWH�WR�WKH�SD\PHQW�RI�SULQFLSDO�RU�
LQWHUHVW�RQ�VXFK�RWKHU�IXWXUH�GHEW�DQG�RXU�DELOLW\�WR�SD\�RXU�REOLJDWLRQV�RQ�WKH��6HFXULWLHV�FRXOG�EH�
DGYHUVHO\� DIIHFWHG��:H� H[SHFW� WKDW�ZH�ZLOO� IURP� WLPH� WR� WLPH� LQFXU� DGGLWLRQDO� GHEW� DQG� RWKHU�
OLDELOLWLHV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��ZH�DUH�QRW�UHVWULFWHG�IURP�SD\LQJ�GLYLGHQGV�RU�LVVXLQJ�RU�UHSXUFKDVLQJ�RXU�
HTXLW\�LQWHUHVWV��
�
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The provisions of the Securities relating to a liquidation event or change of control transactions 
will not necessarily protect you.�
7KH� SURYLVLRQV� LQ� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� ZLOO� QRW� QHFHVVDULO\� DIIRUG� \RX� SURWHFWLRQ� LQ� WKH� HYHQW� RI� D�
WUDQVDFWLRQ� WKDW�PD\� DGYHUVHO\� DIIHFW� \RX�� LQFOXGLQJ� D� UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ�� UHVWUXFWXULQJ��PHUJHU� RU�
RWKHU�VLPLODU�WUDQVDFWLRQ�LQYROYLQJ�XV��7KHVH�WUDQVDFWLRQV�PD\�QRW�LQYROYH�D��OLTXLGDWLRQ�HYHQW��RU�
�FKDQJH� RI� FRQWURO�� ZKLFK� ZRXOG� WR� WULJJHU� WKHVH� SURWHFWLYH� SURYLVLRQV�� ([FHSW� LQ� FHUWDLQ�
FLUFXPVWDQFHV�� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� ZLOO� QRW� SHUPLW� WKH� KROGHUV� RI� WKH� 6HFXULWLHV� WR� UHTXLUH� XV� WR�
UHSXUFKDVH�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LQ�WKH�HYHQW�RI�D�WDNHRYHU��UHFDSLWDOL]DWLRQ�RU�VLPLODU�WUDQVDFWLRQ��
�
We may not be able to repurchase all of the Securities upon a liquidation event or change of 
control repurchase event.�
8SRQ�WKH�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�HYHQWV�FRQVWLWXWLQJ�D�OLTXLGDWLRQ�HYHQW�RU�FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO��ZH�ZLOO�EH�
UHTXLUHG�WR�RIIHU�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��:H�PD\�QRW�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW�IXQGV�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�WKH�
6HFXULWLHV�LQ�FDVK�DW�VXFK�WLPH�RU�KDYH�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�DUUDQJH�QHFHVVDU\�ILQDQFLQJ�RQ�DFFHSWDEOH�
WHUPV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��RXU�DELOLW\�WR�UHSXUFKDVH�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�IRU�FDVK�PD\�EH�OLPLWHG�E\�ODZ�RU�WKH�
WHUPV�RI�RWKHU�DJUHHPHQWV�UHODWLQJ�WR�RXU�LQGHEWHGQHVV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DW�WKH�WLPH��
�
We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our interest payment obligations on 
the Securities.�
2XU�DELOLW\�WR�JHQHUDWH�VXIILFLHQW�FDVK�IORZ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�WR�PDNH�VFKHGXOHG�LQWHUHVW�SD\PHQWV�
RQ� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�GHSHQG�RQ�RXU� IXWXUH� ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��ZKLFK�ZLOO�EH�DIIHFWHG�E\�D�
UDQJH�RI�HFRQRPLF��FRPSHWLWLYH��DQG�EXVLQHVV�IDFWRUV��PDQ\�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�RXWVLGH�RI�RXU�FRQWURO��
7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�EH�LQ�GHIDXOW�LI�LW�LV�XQDEOH�WR�SD\�LQWHUHVW�RU�SULQFLSDO�ZKHQ�GXH��ZKLFK�FRXOG�
IRUFH�XV�WR�GLVFRQWLQXH�RXU�EXVLQHVV��,I�ZH�GR�QRW�JHQHUDWH�VXIILFLHQW�FDVK�IORZ�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV��
ZH�PD\�KDYH� WR�XQGHUWDNH�DOWHUQDWLYH� ILQDQFLQJ�SODQV�� VXFK�DV� UHILQDQFLQJ�RU� UHVWUXFWXULQJ�RXU�
GHEW��VHOOLQJ�DVVHWV��UHGXFLQJ�RU�GHOD\LQJ�FDSLWDO�LQYHVWPHQWV��RU�VHHNLQJ�WR�UDLVH�DGGLWLRQDO�FDSLWDO��
:H�FDQQRW�DVVXUH�\RX�WKDW�DQ\�UHILQDQFLQJ�ZRXOG�EH�SRVVLEOH��WKDW�DQ\�DVVHWV�FRXOG�EH�VROG��RU��LI�
VROG�� RI� WKH� WLPLQJ� RI� WKH� VDOHV� DQG� WKH� DPRXQW� RI� SURFHHGV� UHDOL]HG� IURP� WKRVH� VDOHV�� RU� WKDW�
DGGLWLRQDO�ILQDQFLQJ�FRXOG�EH�REWDLQHG�RQ�DFFHSWDEOH�WHUPV��LI�DW�DOO��RU�ZRXOG�EH�SHUPLWWHG�XQGHU�
WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQWV�JRYHUQLQJ�RXU�LQGHEWHGQHVV�WKHQ�RXWVWDQGLQJ��2XU�LQDELOLW\�WR�JHQHUDWH�
VXIILFLHQW�FDVK�IORZ�WR�VDWLVI\�RXU�LQWHUHVW�SD\PHQWV�RQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�ZRXOG�VHYHUHO\�QHJDWLYHO\�
LPSDFW�\RXU�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��
��
You will not have a vote or influence on the management of the Company.�
6XEVWDQWLDOO\� DOO� GHFLVLRQV� ZLWK� UHVSHFW� WR� WKH� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZLOO� EH� PDGH�
H[FOXVLYHO\� E\� WKH� RIILFHUV�� GLUHFWRUV�� PDQDJHUV� RU� HPSOR\HHV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� <RX�� DV� D�
3XUFKDVHU��ZLOO�KDYH�D�YHU\�OLPLWHG�DELOLW\�WR�YRWH�RQ�LVVXHV�RI�&RPSDQ\�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�
KDYH�WKH�ULJKW�RU�SRZHU�WR�WDNH�SDUW�LQ�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�EH�UHSUHVHQWHG�
RQ�WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�RU�PDQDJHUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��$FFRUGLQJO\��QR�SHUVRQ�VKRXOG�SXUFKDVH�D�
6HFXULW\�XQOHVV�KH�RU�VKH�LV�ZLOOLQJ�WR�HQWUXVW�DOO�DVSHFWV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
Purchasers of the Securities will be subject to tax on any original issue discount before receiving 
the cash payments attributable to such income.�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�EH�WUHDWHG�DV�EHLQJ�LVVXHG�ZLWK�RULJLQDO�LVVXH�GLVFRXQW���2,'���IRU�8�6��IHGHUDO�
LQFRPH�WD[�SXUSRVHV�LQ�DQ�DPRXQW�HTXDO�WR�WKH�H[FHVV�RI�WKHLU�VWDWHG�SULQFLSDO�DPRXQW�RYHU�WKHLU�
LVVXH�SULFH��LI�VXFK�H[FHVV�LV�PRUH�WKDQ�D�GH�PLQLPLV�DPRXQW���$�8�6��KROGHU�RI�WKH�QRWHV�ZLOO�EH�
UHTXLUHG�WR�LQFOXGH�2,'�LQ�JURVV�LQFRPH��DV�RUGLQDU\�LQFRPH��IRU�8�6��IHGHUDO�LQFRPH�WD[�SXUSRVHV�
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DV� LW�DFFUXHV�� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�D�FRQVWDQW�\LHOG�PHWKRG�EDVHG�RQ�D�FRPSRXQGLQJ�RI� LQWHUHVW��
EHIRUH�WKH�UHFHLSW�RI�FDVK�SD\PHQWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�WKLV�LQFRPH��6HH��7D[�0DWWHUV���
�
You have limited opportunities to convert your Securities into common stock.��
<RX�ZLOO�RQO\�EH�DEOH�WR�FRQYHUW�\RXU�6HFXULWLHV�LQWR�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�XSRQ�WKH�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�RQH�RU�
PRUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�HYHQWV��XSRQ�WKH��L��PDWXULW\�RI�\RXU�6HFXULWLHV���LL��D�1H[W�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�
HYHQW�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��RU��LLL��D�&RUSRUDWH�7UDQVDFWLRQ�HYHQW�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�
WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV���L��±��LLL���FROOHFWLYHO\��³&RQYHUVLRQ�(YHQWV´���7KHUH�DUH�QR�RWKHU�HYHQWV�
ZKLFK�ZLOO�WULJJHU�\RXU�ULJKW�WR�FRQYHUW�\RXU�6HFXULWLHV�DQG�\RX�VKRXOG�IDFWRU�WKDW�LQWR�\RXU�FULWHULD�
IRU�GHWHUPLQLQJ�ZKHWKHU�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LV�DSSURSULDWH�IRU�\RX��
�
Debt holders have priority over shareholders in the event of the Company’s bankruptcy or 
liquidation.�
,Q�WKH�HYHQW�RI�RXU�EDQNUXSWF\�RU�OLTXLGDWLRQ��GHEW�KROGHUV��ZLOO�KDYH�SULRULW\�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
DVVHWV�SULRU�WR�DQ\�SUHIHUUHG�RU�FRPPRQ�VKDUHKROGHUV�UHFHLYLQJ�DQ\�DVVHWV�XSRQ�OLTXLGDWLRQ��$IWHU�
UHSD\PHQW�RI�DOO�LQGHEWHGQHVV��WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�DVVHWV�WR�GLVWULEXWH�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV��
�
Dilution.�
7KH�FRQYHUVLRQ�SULFH�RI�WKH�FRPPRQ�VWRFN��ZKLFK�VKDOO�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��SOHDVH�
VHH� WKH� VHFWLRQ� HQWLWOHG� �7KH�2IIHULQJ� DQG�7KH� 6HFXULWLHV�� EHORZ� IRU�PRUH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� RQ� WKH�
GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�FRQYHUVLRQ�SULFH��DQG�PD\�EH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�KLJKHU�WKDQ�WKH�SUR�IRUPD�QHW�WDQJLEOH�
ERRN�YDOXH�SHU�VKDUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�FRQYHUVLRQ��$V�D�
UHVXOW��\RX�PD\�LQFXU�LPPHGLDWH�DQG�VXEVWDQWLDO�GLOXWLRQ�LQ�WKH�SHU�VKDUH�QHW�WDQJLEOH�ERRN�YDOXH�
RI�\RXU�VKDUHV�RI�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�ZKHQ�\RX�FRQYHUW��$GGLWLRQDOO\��LI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LVVXHV�DGGLWLRQDO�
VKDUHV�RI�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��\RX�PD\�H[SHULHQFH�IXUWKHU�GLOXWLRQ��
�
,Q�DGGLWLRQ� WR� WKH� ULVNV� OLVWHG�DERYH��EXVLQHVVHV� DUH�RIWHQ�VXEMHFW� WR� ULVNV�QRW� IRUHVHHQ�RU� IXOO\�
DSSUHFLDWHG�E\�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW��,W�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH�WR�IRUHVHH�DOO�ULVNV�WKDW�PD\�DIIHFW�XV��0RUHRYHU��
WKH�&RPSDQ\�FDQQRW�SUHGLFW�ZKHWKHU� WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO� VXFFHVVIXOO\� HIIHFWXDWH� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
FXUUHQW�EXVLQHVV�SODQ��(DFK�SURVSHFWLYH�3XUFKDVHU�LV�HQFRXUDJHG�WR�FDUHIXOO\�DQDO\]H�WKH�ULVNV�DQG�
PHULWV�RI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW� LQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�DQG�VKRXOG�WDNH�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�ZKHQ�PDNLQJ�VXFK�
DQDO\VLV��DPRQJ�RWKHU��WKH�5LVN�)DFWRUV�GLVFXVVHG�DERYH��
�
7+(�6(&85,7,(6�2))(5('�,192/9(�$�+,*+�'(*5((�2)�5,6.�$1'�0$<�5(68/7�
,1� 7+(� /266� 2)� <285� (17,5(� ,19(670(17�� $1<� 3(5621� &216,'(5,1*� 7+(�
385&+$6(� 2)� 7+(6(� 6(&85,7,(6� 6+28/'� %(� $:$5(� 2)� 7+(6(� $1'� 27+(5�
)$&7256�6(7�)257+�,1�7+,6�)250�&�$1'�6+28/'�&2168/7�:,7+�+,6�25�+(5�
/(*$/��7$;�$1'�),1$1&,$/�$'9,6256�35,25�72�0$.,1*�$1� ,19(670(17� ,1�
7+(� 6(&85,7,(6�� 7+(� 6(&85,7,(6� 6+28/'�21/<� %(� 385&+$6('�%<� 3(56216�
:+2�&$1�$))25'�72�/26(�$//�2)�7+(,5�,19(670(17��
�
%86,1(66��
�
'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV��
�
0RGJDUGHQ¶V�VPDUW�LQGRRU�IDUPV�EULGJHV�WKH�JDS�EHWZHHQ�PRGHUQ�XUEDQ�OLIH��KXPDQ�ZHOOQHVV�DQG�
WKH�KHDOWK�RI�WKH�SODQHW��*URZ������RUJDQLF�OHDI\�JUHHQV�LQ�D�EHDXWLIXOO\�GHVLJQHG��VXVWDLQDEOH��
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DQG�HDV\� WR�XVH� LQGRRU� IDUP��7KH�EXVLQHVV�ZLOO�JHQHUDWH� UHYHQXH� WKURXJK�D�GLUHFW�WR�FRQVXPHU�
VXEVFULSWLRQ�PRGHO�DQG�JDLQ�QHWZRUN�HIIHFWV�E\�VFDOLQJ�JOREDOO\�WKURXJK�EUDQGHG�SDUWQHUVKLSV�DQG�
WHFKQRORJLHV�VXFK�DV�$,��,R7�DQG�SODQW�KHDOWK�VFLHQFH���
�
%XVLQHVV�3ODQ��
�
:H�DUH�UHLQYHQWLQJ�KRZ�SHRSOH�ZLOO�HDW�E\�SURYLGLQJ�DFFHVVLEOH�DQG�DIIRUGDEOH�RUJDQLF�IRRG��,Q�
RUGHU�WR�ZLQ�LQ�WKH�GLUHFW�WR�FRQVXPHU�VSDFH�WKH�FRPSDQ\�LV�IRFXVHG�RQ�FRQYHQLHQFH��H[FHSWLRQDO�
SURGXFW�GHVLJQ�DQG�H[SHULHQFHV��DQG�EXLOGLQJ�QHWZRUN�HIIHFWV�WKURXJK�$,��,R7��DQG�SODQW�VFLHQFH��
:H�DUH�ORRNLQJ�DW�WKUHH�VWDJHV�RI�JURZWK���
�� ,Q�WKH�ILUVW�VWDJH��ZH�ZLOO�SLORW�WKH�6PDUW�,QGRRU�)DUP�LQ�RQH�FLW\�LQ�1RUWK�$PHULFD���
��7KH�VHFRQG�VWDJH��LV�EXLOGLQJ�VFDOH�DFURVV�WKH�86�IRU�WLQ\)DUP�DQG�H[SDQG�LQWR�UHVWDXUDQWV�DQG�
JURFHU\�VXSHUPDUNHWV��

��7KH�WKLUG�VWDJH�RI�JURZWK�HQWDLOV�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�H[SDQVLRQ�WDUJHWLQJ����FLWLHV�JOREDOO\�
�
+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�%XVLQHVV��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�3URGXFWV�DQG�RU�6HUYLFHV��
�
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3URGXFW���6HUYLFH� 'HVFULSWLRQ� &XUUHQW�0DUNHW�

6PDUW�LQGRRU�IDUP�

WLQ\)DUP�E\�0RGJDUGHQ��LV�D�
VPDUW�LQGRRU�IDUP�WKDW�JURZV�
�����RUJDQLF�OHDI\�JUHHQV�
DQG�YHJHWDEOHV�LQ�DQ�HDV\�WR�
XVH�DQG�FRQYHQLHQW�ZD\��,W�
FRPSOLPHQWV�\RXU�KRPH�ZLWK�
LWV�PRGHUQ�GHVLJQ�DQG�ZDV�
UHFHQWO\�ZLQQHU�RI�WKH�

SUHVWLJLRXV�0LODQ�'HVLJQ�
:HHN�$ZDUG��/LNH�D�.HXULJ�
&RIIHH�PDFKLQH��LQVHUW�VRLO�
FDUWULGJHV�DQG�RUJDQLF�VHHG�
VKHHWV�DQG�ZDWFK�\RXU�SODQWV�
QDWXUDOO\�JURZ��,W¶V�PRGXODU�
GHVLJQ�HQDEOHV�\RX�WR�H[SDQG�
YHUWLFDOO\�DQG�KRUL]RQWDOO\�
DJDLQVW�D�ZDOO�IRU�D�JURZLQJ�

IDPLO\���

7KLV�LV�D�SUH�UHYHQXH�SURGXFW�

3URSULHWDU\�6RLO�

WLQ\6RLO�E\�0RGJDUGHQ��LV�OLNH�
WKH�SURELRWLFV�IRU�SODQWV��

'HYHORSHG�ZLWK�WKH�IDFXOW\�RI�
D�OHDGLQJ�&DQDGLDQ�

$JULFXOWXUDO�XQLYHUVLW\��
WLQ\6RLO�LV�D�ELRORJLFDO�EDVHG�
VRLO��IRUPXODWHG�ZLWK�FOHDQ�

LQJUHGLHQWV�WKDW�DUH�
VXVWDLQDEO\�VRXUFHG��ZLWKRXW�
DQ\�DGGLWLYHV�RU�IHUWLOL]HUV��

:H�DUH�UXQQLQJ�D�SLORW��

�
�
�
0RGJDUGHQ�LV�EXLOW�ZLWK�SXUSRVH�DQG�D�IRFXV�RQ�LPSURYLQJ�KXPDQ�ZHOOQHVV�DQG�D�UHJHQHUDWLYH�
SODQHW��:LWK�WKLV�LQ�PLQG��ZH�DUH�ORRNLQJ�WR�XVH�WKH�SURFHHGV�RI�WKH�UDLVH�WR�SLORW�WLQ\)DUP�DQG�
EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�EHIRUH�ZH�VFDOH��
�
7KH�FRPSDQ\�LV�FXUUHQWO\�SUH�UHYHQXH��:H�LQWHQG�WR�SLORW�WLQ\)DUP�WKURXJK�D�VXEVFULSWLRQ�EDVHG�
GLUHFW�WR�FRQVXPHU�PRGHO�IRU�VRLO�FDUWULGJHV�DQG�VHHGV��)XUWKHU��WKH�DGYDQWDJH�RI�GDWD�WR�UDSLGO\�
LQIRUP�DQG�LPSURYH�WKH�SURGXFW�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�D�GLUHFW�WR�FRQVXPHU�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�LV�LQYDOXDEOH�
EHIRUH�VFDOLQJ�WKH�EXVLQHVV���
�
�
&RPSHWLWLRQ��
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�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V� SULPDU\� FRPSHWLWRUV� DUH��ZH� FRPSHWH�ZLWK� LQGRRU� JDUGHQLQJ� V\VWHPV� VXFK� DV�
6SURXW�+RPH��&OLFNDQG*URZ�DQG�$HUR*DUGHQ�DV�ZHOO�DV�JURFHU\�VWRUHV��
�
:H�GLIIHUHQWLDWH�RXUVHOYHV�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ZD\����JURZLQJ�ELRORJLFDO�EDVHG�IRRG��DV�RSSRVHG�WR�
FKHPLFDO�EDVHG��IRU�EHWWHU�KHDOWK�DQG�ZHOOQHVV���PDNLQJ�LW�HDVLHU�DQG�PRUH�FRQYHQLHQW�IRU�SHRSOH�
WR� JURZ� LQ� WKHLU� KRPHV� �� IRFXV� RQ� JUHDW� SURGXFW� GHVLJQ� DQG� H[FHSWLRQDO� H[SHULHQFHV� �� GULYLQJ�
QHWZRUN�HIIHFWV�DW�VFDOH��WKURXJK�$,��,R7�DQG�SODQW�VFLHQFH���FKDQQHO�IRFXV�LQLWLDOO\�ZRXOG�EH�GLUHFW�
WR�FRQVXPHU�DQG�WKHQ�H[SDQG�LQWR�JURFHU\�VXSHUPDUNHWV�DQG�UHVWDXUDQWV�
�
6XSSO\�&KDLQ�DQG�&XVWRPHU�%DVH��
�
5DZ�PDWHULDOV�HVVHQWLDO�WR�RXU�EXVLQHVVHV�DUH�SXUFKDVHG�IURP�&DQDGD�DQG�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�LQ�WKH�
RUGLQDU\�FRXUVH�RI�EXVLQHVV�IURP�QXPHURXV�VXSSOLHUV��,Q�JHQHUDO��WKHVH�PDWHULDOV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IURP�
PXOWLSOH�VRXUFHV���
�
�
2XU�SULPDU\�WDUJHW�DXGLHQFH�DUH�0LOOHQQLDOV��IROORZHG�E\�%RRPHUV��$W�D�UHFHQW�+RPH�	�*DUGHQ�
7UDGH� VKRZ�� ���� FXVWRPHUV� SDLG� PRQH\� XSIURQW� IRU� WKH� SURGXFW�� D� QXPEHU� RI� WKHP� ZHUH�
0LOOHQQLDOV��DQG�%RRPHUV�ZKR�JDUGHQ�IRU�IRRG�DQG�RU�SXUFKDVH�RUJDQLF�IRRG��6HFRQG��LQ�DQ�$XJXVW�
�����TXDQWLWDWLYH�VWXG\�ZLWK�86�FRQVXPHUV��ZH�IRXQG�WKH�SURGXFW�DSSHDOHG�DFURVV�WKH�ERDUG�ZLWK�
YHU\�KLJK�SXUFKDVH� LQWHUHVW� IURP�WKH�������DJH�JURXS��)LQDOO\��&%� ,QVLJKWV� UHFHQWO\� UHOHDVHG�D�
VWXG\�RQ�LQGXVWULHV�WKDW�ZLOO�WKULYH�GXH�WR�0LOOHQQLDOV�DQG��3ODQW�3DUHQWLQJ��ZDV�RQH�RI�WKH�FRUH�
JURZWK�LQGXVWULHV��JURZLQJ�DW������D�\HDU��
�
�
,QWHOOHFWXDO�3URSHUW\��
�
Patents��
�

$SSOLFDWLRQ�
RU�

5HJLVWUDWLRQ�
��

7LWOH� 'HVFULSWLRQ� )LOH�'DWH� *UDQW�'DWH� &RXQWU\�

'�������
9(57,&$/�
)$50,1*�
81,7�

'HVLJQ�SDWHQW�
IRU�WKH�LQGRRU�

YHUWLFDO�
IDUPLQJ�XQLW�
ZLWK�YDULRXV�
SHUVSHFWLYHV�

DQG�
FDSDELOLWLHV��

)HEUXDU\�����
����� -XQH���������� 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�

�
�
�
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Trademarks��
�

$SSOLFDWLRQ�
RU�

5HJLVWUDWLRQ��

*RRGV���
6HUYLFHV� 0DUN� )LOH�'DWH� 5HJLVWUDWLRQ�

'DWH� &RXQWU\�

��������� *URZLQJ�
DSSOLDQFH� WLQ\)DUP� � -XO\���������� 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�

��������� 6RLO� WLQ\6RLO� � -XO\���������� 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�

���������

$JULFXOWXUDO�
PDFKLQHV��
QDPHO\��
LQGRRU�

FXOWLYDWLRQ�

PRGJDUGHQ� � 6HSWHPEHU�����
����� 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�

���������

$JULFXOWXUDO�
PDFKLQHV��
QDPHO\��
LQGRRU�

FXOWLYDWLRQ�

PRGJDUGHQ�
ORJ�

2FWREHU�����
�����

2FWREHU�����
����� XQLWHG�VWDWHV�

�
�
�
7UDGH�VHFUHW�VRLO�UHFLSH�IURP�WKH�)DFXOW\�RI�$JULFXOWXUH�DW�'DOKRXVLH�8QLYHUVLW\��
�
*RYHUQPHQWDO�5HJXODWRU\�$SSURYDO�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH��
�
2XU�FRPSDQ\�LV�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�86�IHGHUDO��VWDWH�RU�ORFDO�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DXWKRULW\�QRU�WKH�ODZV�
RU�UHJXODWLRQV�RI�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�FRXQWULHV�DQG�ERGLHV��VXFK�DV�WKH�(XURSHDQ�8QLRQ��WKH��(8�����
�
/LWLJDWLRQ��
�
7KHUH�DUH�QR�H[LVWLQJ�OHJDO�VXLWV�SHQGLQJ��RU�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�NQRZOHGJH��WKUHDWHQHG��DJDLQVW�WKH�
&RPSDQ\��
�
2WKHU��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SULQFLSDO�DGGUHVV�LV������&RIIHHQ�$YHQXH��6XLWH�������6KHULGDQ��:<�������
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV� WKH� IROORZLQJ� DGGLWLRQDO� DGGUHVVHV�� �����'XQGDV�6WUHHW�:HVW�� 32%��������
7RURQWR��21�0�3��<��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�FRQGXFWV�EXVLQHVV�LQ�&DQDGD�DQG�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD��
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�
�
%HFDXVH�WKLV�)RUP�&�IRFXVHV�SULPDULO\�RQ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�UDWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�
LQGXVWU\� LQ�ZKLFK� WKH�&RPSDQ\�RSHUDWHV�� SRWHQWLDO�3XUFKDVHUV�PD\�ZLVK� WR� FRQGXFW� WKHLU� RZQ�
VHSDUDWH� LQYHVWLJDWLRQ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� LQGXVWU\� WR� REWDLQ� JUHDWHU� LQVLJKW� LQ� DVVHVVLQJ� WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�SURVSHFWV��
�
86(�2)�352&(('6��
�
7KH� IROORZLQJ� WDEOH� OLVWV� WKH� XVH� RI� SURFHHGV� RI� WKH� 2IIHULQJ� LI� WKH� 0LQLPXP� $PRXQW� DQG�
0D[LPXP�$PRXQW�DUH�UDLVHG��
�
�
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8VH�RI�3URFHHGV� ��RI�0LQLPXP�
3URFHHGV�5DLVHG

$PRXQW�LI�
0LQLPXP�
5DLVHG�

��RI�0D[LPXP�
3URFHHGV�5DLVHG�

$PRXQW�LI�
0D[LPXP�
5DLVHG�

,QWHUPHGLDU\�
)HHV� ������ ��� ������ ��������

&DPSDLJQ�
PDUNHWLQJ�
H[SHQVHV�RU�
UHODWHG�

UHLPEXUVHPHQW�

������� �������� ������ ��������

(VWLPDWHG�
$WWRUQH\�)HHV� ������ ������� ������ ��������

(VWLPDWHG�
$FFRXQWDQW�$XGL

WRU�)HHV�
������ ��� ������ ��������

*HQHUDO�
0DUNHWLQJ� ������ ��� ������ ��������

5HVHDUFK�DQG�
'HYHORSPHQW� ������� �������� ������ ��������

0DQXIDFWXULQJ� ������� �������� ������ ���������

)XWXUH�:DJHV� ������� �������� ������� ���������

*HQHUDO�:RUNLQJ�
&DSLWDO� ������� �������� ������ ���������

IHHV� ������ � ������ ��������

)LQDO�
(QJLQHHULQJ�

�%HWD�DQG�3LORW��
������ � ������� ���������

7RWDO� �������� ��������� �������� �����������

�
�
�
7KH�8VH�RI�3URFHHGV�FKDUW�LV�QRW�LQFOXVLYH�RI�IHHV�SDLG�IRU�XVH�RI�WKH�)RUP�&�JHQHUDWLRQ�V\VWHP��
SD\PHQWV� WR� ILQDQFLDO� DQG� OHJDO� VHUYLFH� SURYLGHUV�� DQG� HVFURZ� UHODWHG� IHHV�� DOO� RI�ZKLFK�ZHUH�
LQFXUUHG�LQ�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FDPSDLJQ�DQG�DUH�GXH�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�WKH�FORVLQJ�RI�WKH�FDPSDLJQ���
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7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�KDYH�GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�DOWHU�WKH�XVH�RI�SURFHHGV�DV�VHW�IRUWK�DERYH��7KH�&RPSDQ\�
PD\�DOWHU�WKH�XVH�RI�SURFHHGV�XQGHU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��7KH�SLORW�ZLOO�HQDEOH�PRGJDUGHQ�
WR�JHW�WKH�ULJKW�PHWULFV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�VFDOH��:H�ZLOO�YDU\�DVSHFWV�RI�VSHQGLQJ�RQ�SURGXFW�SHUIRUPDQFH��
RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�PDUNHWLQJ�EDVHG�RQ�FDSLWDO�UDLVHG����
�
',5(&7256��2)),&(56�$1'�(03/2<((6��
�
�
'LUHFWRUV��
�
7KH�GLUHFWRUV�RU�PDQDJHUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�OLVWHG�EHORZ�DORQJ�ZLWK�DOO�SRVLWLRQV�DQG�RIILFHV�
KHOG�DW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKHLU�SULQFLSDO�RFFXSDWLRQ�DQG�HPSOR\PHQW�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�SDVW�
WKUHH�����\HDUV�DQG�WKHLU�HGXFDWLRQDO�EDFNJURXQG�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��
�
�
Name�
�
$DPDU�.KZDMD�
�
All positions and offices held with the Company and date such position(s) was held with start 
and ending dates�
�
3UHVLGHQW�DQG�7UHDVXUHU��'LUHFWRU��2FWREHU������±�3UHVHQW��
�
Principal occupation and employment responsibilities during at least the last three (3) years 
with start and ending dates�
�
)RXQGHU�DQG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SDUHQW�HQWLW\����������&DQDGD��,QF���ZKLFK�
LQWHQGV�WR�SURGXFH�VLPLODU�SURGXFWV�LQ�&DQDGD�������3UHVHQW��
�
�
Education�
�
1<8�%6F�LQ�0DUNHWLQJ�������
83HQQ��3HQQ�(QJLQHHULQJ�	�:KDUWRQ�6FKRRO�RI�%XVLQHVV��LQ�SURFHVV��
�
�
Name�
�
6LGGDUWK�$SD\D�
�
All positions and offices held with the Company and date such position(s) was held with start 
and ending dates�
�
6HFUHWDU\��'LUHFWRU��2FWREHU�������±�3UHVHQW��
�
Principal occupation and employment responsibilities during at least the last three (3) years 
with start and ending dates�
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�
'LUHFWRU� DQG�*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU��$ZD\�)URP�+RPH�%XVLQHVV� ��6PXFNHU�)RRGV�RI�&DQDGD� �)HE�
�������1RY�������,QGHSHQGHQW�6WUDWHJ\�&RQVXOWDQW��-DQ��������'HF�������&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2IILFHU��
��������&DQDGD�,QF���0DU��������3UHVHQW���6HFUHWDU\��WKH�&RPSDQ\��2FW������±�3UHVLGHQW��
�
Education�
�
0%$���8QLYHUVLW\�RI�:HVWHUQ�2QWDULR�������������
�
�
�
�
2IILFHUV��
�
7KH� RIILFHUV� RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\� DUH� OLVWHG� EHORZ� DORQJ�ZLWK� DOO� SRVLWLRQV� DQG� RIILFHV� KHOG� DW� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�DQG� WKHLU�SULQFLSDO�RFFXSDWLRQ�DQG�HPSOR\PHQW� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� IRU� WKH�SDVW� WKUHH�����
\HDUV�DQG�WKHLU�HGXFDWLRQDO�EDFNJURXQG�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��
�
�
Name�
�
$DPDU�.KZDMD�
�
All positions and offices held with the Company and date such position(s) was held with start 
and ending dates�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
Principal occupation and employment responsibilities during at least the last three (3) years 
with start and ending dates�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
Education�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
�
Name�
�
6LGGDUWK�$SD\D��6HFUHWDU\�
�
All positions and offices held with the Company and date such position(s) was held with start 
and ending dates�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
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Principal occupation and employment responsibilities during at least the last three (3) years 
with start and ending dates�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
Education�
�
6HH�DERYH�LQ�WKH�'LUHFWRUV�VHFWLRQ��
�
�
�
�
Indemnification�
�
,QGHPQLILFDWLRQ�LV�DXWKRUL]HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�GLUHFWRUV��RIILFHUV�RU�FRQWUROOLQJ�SHUVRQV�DFWLQJ�
LQ�WKHLU�SURIHVVLRQDO�FDSDFLW\�SXUVXDQW�WR�:\RPLQJ�ODZ��,QGHPQLILFDWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�H[SHQVHV�VXFK�
DV�DWWRUQH\¶V�IHHV�DQG��LQ�FHUWDLQ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��MXGJPHQWV��ILQHV�DQG�VHWWOHPHQW�DPRXQWV�DFWXDOO\�
SDLG�RU� LQFXUUHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�DFWXDO�RU� WKUHDWHQHG�DFWLRQV��VXLWV�RU�SURFHHGLQJV�LQYROYLQJ�
VXFK�SHUVRQ�� H[FHSW� LQ� FHUWDLQ� FLUFXPVWDQFHV�ZKHUH� D�SHUVRQ� LV� DGMXGJHG� WR�EH� JXLOW\� RI� JURVV�
QHJOLJHQFH�RU�ZLOOIXO�PLVFRQGXFW��XQOHVV�D�FRXUW�RI�FRPSHWHQW� MXULVGLFWLRQ�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�VXFK�
LQGHPQLILFDWLRQ�LV�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��
�
(PSOR\HHV��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�FXUUHQWO\�KDV���HPSOR\HHV�LQ�2QWDULR��&DQDGD��
�
&$3,7$/,=$7,21�$1'�2:1(56+,3��
�
&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�LVVXHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�RXWVWDQGLQJ�6HFXULWLHV��
�



�

����
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������
$FWLYH?����������Y�����������

7\SH�RI�VHFXULW\� &RPPRQ�6WRFN�

$PRXQW�RXWVWDQGLQJ� ����������

9RWLQJ�5LJKWV� <HV�

$QWL�'LOXWLRQ�5LJKWV� 1RQH�

+RZ�WKLV�6HFXULW\�PD\�OLPLW��GLOXWH�RU�
TXDOLI\�WKH�1RWHV�%RQGV�LVVXHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�

5HJXODWLRQ�&)�
1RQH��

3HUFHQWDJH�RZQHUVKLS�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�E\�
WKH�KROGHUV�RI�VXFK�6HFXULWLHV��DVVXPLQJ�

FRQYHUVLRQ�SULRU�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�LI�
FRQYHUWLEOH�VHFXULWLHV���

�����

�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�GHEW�RXWVWDQGLQJ��1RQH��
�
�
)ROORZLQJ� WKH�2IIHULQJ�� WKH� WRWDO� DPRXQW�RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ� LQGHEWHGQHVV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO� EH�
���������LI�WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�LV�UDLVHG�DQG���������������LI�WKH�0D[LPXP�$PRXQW�LV�UDLVHG��
 
2ZQHUVKLS��
�
$� PDMRULW\� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV� RZQHG� EHQHILFLDOO\� E\� WKH� IRXQGHU�� $DPDU� .KZDMD�� )RXQGHU�
���������
�
%HORZ�WKH�EHQHILFLDO�RZQHUV�RI�����SHUFHQW�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YRWLQJ�HTXLW\�
VHFXULWLHV��FDOFXODWHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�YRWLQJ�SRZHU��DUH�OLVWHG�DORQJ�ZLWK�WKH�DPRXQW�WKH\�RZQ��
�

1DPH� 3HUFHQWDJH�2ZQHG�3ULRU�WR�2IIHULQJ�

$DPDU�.KZDMD�� �������

�
�
),1$1&,$/�,1)250$7,21��
�
3OHDVH�VHH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�FRYHU�SDJH�RI�WKLV�)RUP�&�DQG�DWWDFKHG�
KHUHWR�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��)LQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DWWDFKHG�KHUHWR�DV�
([KLELW�$��
�
2SHUDWLRQV��
�
:H�DUH�D�SUH�UHYHQXH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�RXU�SULPDU\�H[SHQVHV�FRQVLVW�RI�WKH�0DQXIDFWXULQJ��VHWWLQJ�XS�
RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�ODXQFKLQJ�D�SLORW��:H�GR�QRW�DQWLFLSDWH�JHQHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH�XQWLO�4XDUWHU����������
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�
7KH�&RPSDQ\� LQWHQGV� WR�DFKLHYH�XQLW� HFRQRPLF�SURILWDELOLW\� LQ� WKH�QH[W�QLQH�PRQWKV� IURP� WKH�
FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�2IIHULQJ��E\�SLORWLQJ�WKH�SURGXFW�LQ�RQH�1RUWK�$PHULFDQ�FLW\��
�
/LTXLGLW\�DQG�&DSLWDO�5HVRXUFHV��
�
7KH�2IIHULQJ�SURFHHGV�DUH�HVVHQWLDO� WR�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV��:H�SODQ�WR�XVH�WKH�SURFHHGV�DV�VHW�IRUWK�
DERYH�XQGHU��XVH�RI�SURFHHGV���ZKLFK�LV�DQ�LQGLVSHQVDEOH�HOHPHQW�RI�RXU�EXVLQHVV�VWUDWHJ\��7KH�
2IIHULQJ�SURFHHGV�ZLOO�KDYH�D�EHQHILFLDO�HIIHFW�RQ�RXU�OLTXLGLW\�ZKLFK�ZLOO�EH�DXJPHQWHG�E\�WKH�
2IIHULQJ�SURFHHGV�DQG�XVHG�WR�H[HFXWH�RXU�EXVLQHVV�VWUDWHJ\��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�DGGLWLRQDO�VRXUFHV�RI�FDSLWDO�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�SURFHHGV�IURP�WKH�
2IIHULQJ��
�
&DSLWDO�([SHQGLWXUHV�DQG�2WKHU�2EOLJDWLRQV��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�LQWHQG�WR�PDNH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��
�
2XU�GHVLJQ�DQG�HQJLQHHULQJ�FRPSDQ\�LV�RZHG�DSSUR[LPDWHO\����������IURP�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG�WR�
GDWH��:H�LQWHQG�WR�XVH�WKH�VDPH�FRPSDQ\�JRLQJ�IRUZDUG�DQG�KDYH�DUUDQJHG�D�UHDVRQDEOH�SD\EDFN�
VFKHGXOH�RQFH�WKH�EXVLQHVV�LV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ���
�
0DWHULDO�&KDQJHV�DQG�2WKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ��
�
7UHQGV�DQG�8QFHUWDLQWLHV��
�
$IWHU� UHYLHZLQJ� WKH� DERYH� GLVFXVVLRQ� RI� WKH� VWHSV� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LQWHQGV� WR� WDNH�� SRWHQWLDO�
3XUFKDVHUV�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�ZKHWKHU�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�HDFK�VWHS�ZLWKLQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�WLPH�IUDPH�LV�
UHDOLVWLF� LQ� WKHLU� MXGJPHQW�� � 3RWHQWLDO� 3XUFKDVHUV� VKRXOG� DOVR� DVVHVV� WKH� FRQVHTXHQFHV� WR� WKH�
&RPSDQ\� RI� DQ\� GHOD\V� LQ� WDNLQJ� WKHVH� VWHSV� DQG�ZKHWKHU� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZLOO� QHHG� DGGLWLRQDO�
ILQDQFLQJ�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�WKHP��
�
7KH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DQ� LPSRUWDQW�SDUW�RI� WKLV�)RUP�&�DQG�VKRXOG�EH� UHYLHZHG� LQ� WKHLU�
HQWLUHW\��7KH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�DWWDFKHG�KHUHWR�DV�([KLELW�$��
�
7+(�2))(5,1*�$1'�7+(�6(&85,7,(6��
�
7KH�2IIHULQJ��
�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� LV� RIIHULQJ� XS� WR� ������ XQLWV� DW� ����� RI� ��� &RQYHUWLEOH� 1RWHV� IRU� XS� WR�
���������������7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV�DWWHPSWLQJ� WR� UDLVH�D�PLQLPXP�DPRXQW�RI������������� LQ� WKLV�
2IIHULQJ��WKH��0LQLPXP�$PRXQW����7KH�&RPSDQ\�PXVW�UHFHLYH�FRPPLWPHQWV�IURP�LQYHVWRUV�LQ�
DQ�DPRXQW�WRWDOLQJ�WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�E\�2FWREHU�����������WKH��2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH���LQ�RUGHU�
WR� UHFHLYH� DQ\� IXQGV�� ,I� WKH� VXP�RI� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW� FRPPLWPHQWV�GRHV�QRW� HTXDO�RU� H[FHHG� WKH�
0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�E\�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH��QR�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�EH�VROG�LQ�WKH�2IIHULQJ��LQYHVWPHQW�
FRPPLWPHQWV�ZLOO�EH�FDQFHOOHG�DQG�FRPPLWWHG�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�SRWHQWLDO�LQYHVWRUV�ZLWKRXW�
LQWHUHVW�RU�GHGXFWLRQV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�H[WHQG�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH�DW�LWV�GLVFUHWLRQ��
7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�DFFHSW� LQYHVWPHQWV� LQ�H[FHVV�RI� WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�XS�WR���������������
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�WKH��0D[LPXP�$PRXQW���DQG�WKH�DGGLWLRQDO�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�EH�DOORFDWHG�RQ�D�)LUVW�FRPH��ILUVW�
VHUYHG�EDVLV��
�
7KH�SULFH�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�GRHV�QRW�QHFHVVDULO\�EHDU�DQ\�UHODWLRQVKLS�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�DVVHW�YDOXH��
QHW�ZRUWK��UHYHQXHV�RU�RWKHU�HVWDEOLVKHG�FULWHULD�RI�YDOXH��DQG�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�LQGLFDWLYH�
RI�WKH�DFWXDO�YDOXH�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��
�
,Q�RUGHU�WR�SXUFKDVH�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�\RX�PXVW�PDNH�D�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�SXUFKDVH�E\�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�
6XEVFULSWLRQ�$JUHHPHQW�� 3XUFKDVHU� IXQGV�ZLOO� EH� KHOG� LQ� HVFURZ�ZLWK�1RUWK�&DSLWDO� )LQDQFLDO�
6HUYLFHV� XQWLO� WKH� 0LQLPXP� $PRXQW� RI� LQYHVWPHQWV� LV� UHDFKHG�� 3XUFKDVHUV� PD\� FDQFHO� DQ�
LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQW�XQWLO����KRXUV�SULRU�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH�RU�WKH�&ORVLQJ��ZKLFKHYHU�
FRPHV�ILUVW�XVLQJ�WKH�FDQFHOODWLRQ�PHFKDQLVP�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\��7KH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�
QRWLI\� 3XUFKDVHUV�ZKHQ� WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW� KDV� EHHQ� UHDFKHG�� ,I� WKH�&RPSDQ\� UHDFKHV� WKH�
0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�SULRU�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH��LW�PD\�FORVH�WKH�2IIHULQJ�DW�OHDVW�ILYH�����GD\V�
DIWHU�UHDFKLQJ�WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�DQG�SURYLGLQJ�QRWLFH�WR�WKH�3XUFKDVHUV��,I�DQ\�PDWHULDO�FKDQJH�
�RWKHU�WKDQ�UHDFKLQJ�WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW��RFFXUV�UHODWHG�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�SULRU�WR�WKH�2IIHULQJ�
'HDGOLQH�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� ZLOO� SURYLGH� QRWLFH� WR� 3XUFKDVHUV� DQG� UHFHLYH� UHFRQILUPDWLRQV� IURP�
3XUFKDVHUV�ZKR�KDYH�DOUHDG\�PDGH�FRPPLWPHQWV�� ,I� D�3XUFKDVHU�GRHV�QRW� UHFRQILUP�KLV�RU�KHU�
LQYHVWPHQW� FRPPLWPHQW� DIWHU� D� PDWHULDO� FKDQJH� LV� PDGH� WR� WKH� WHUPV� RI� WKH� 2IIHULQJ�� WKH�
3XUFKDVHU¶V�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQW�ZLOO�EH�FDQFHOOHG�DQG�WKH�FRPPLWWHG�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�
ZLWKRXW�LQWHUHVW�RU�GHGXFWLRQV��,I�D�3XUFKDVHU�GRHV�QRW�FDQFHO�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQW�EHIRUH�
WKH�0LQLPXP�$PRXQW�LV�UHDFKHG��WKH�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHOHDVHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�XSRQ�FORVLQJ�RI�WKH�
2IIHULQJ�DQG�WKH�3XUFKDVHU�ZLOO�UHFHLYH�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LQ�H[FKDQJH�IRU�KLV�RU�KHU�LQYHVWPHQW��$Q\�
3XUFKDVHU� IXQGV� UHFHLYHG� DIWHU� WKH� LQLWLDO� FORVLQJ� ZLOO� EH� UHOHDVHG� WR� WKH� &RPSDQ\� XSRQ� D�
VXEVHTXHQW� FORVLQJ� DQG� WKH�3XUFKDVHU�ZLOO� UHFHLYH�6HFXULWLHV� YLD�(OHFWURQLF�&HUWLILFDWH�3')� LQ�
H[FKDQJH�IRU�KLV�RU�KHU�LQYHVWPHQW�DV�VRRQ�DV�SUDFWLFDEOH�WKHUHDIWHU���
�
6XEVFULSWLRQ�$JUHHPHQWV�DUH�QRW�ELQGLQJ�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�XQWLO�DFFHSWHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��ZKLFK�
UHVHUYHV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHMHFW��LQ�ZKROH�RU�LQ�SDUW��LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ��DQ\�VXEVFULSWLRQ��
,I�WKH�&RPSDQ\�UHMHFWV�DOO�RU�D�SRUWLRQ�RI�DQ\�VXEVFULSWLRQ��WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�SURVSHFWLYH�3XUFKDVHU¶V�
IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�ZLWKRXW�LQWHUHVW�RU�GHGXFWLRQ��
�
�
7KH�SULFH�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LV�������7KH�SULFH�RI�WKH�VHFXULWLHV�ZDV�GHWHUPLQHG�DUELWUDULO\�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�DQG�DQ\�SXUFKDVHU�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�VKRXOG�QRW�UHO\�RQ�VXFK�SULFH�DV�D�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�
WKH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI� VXFK�6HFXULWLHV��7KH�PLQLPXP�DPRXQW� WKDW� D�3XUFKDVHU�PD\� LQYHVW� LQ� WKH�
2IIHULQJ�LV����������
�
,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW����������LQ�LQYHVWPHQWV�LV�FRPPLWWHG�DQG�UHFHLYHG�E\�WKH�HVFURZ�DJHQW�DQG�PRUH�
WKDQ�WKLUW\������GD\V�UHPDLQ�EHIRUH�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH��WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�FRQGXFW�WKH�ILUVW�RI�
PXOWLSOH�FORVLQJV�RI�WKH�2IIHULQJ��DQ�³,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ORVH´���SURYLGHG�DOO�LQYHVWRUV�UHFHLYH�QRWLFH�
WKDW�DQ�,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ORVH�ZLOO�RFFXU�DQG�IXQGV�ZLOO�EH�UHOHDVHG�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DW�OHDVW�ILYH�����
EXVLQHVV� GD\V� SULRU� WR� WKH� ,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ORVH� �DEVHQW� D�PDWHULDO� FKDQJH� WKDW�ZRXOG� UHTXLUH� DQ�
H[WHQVLRQ� RI� WKH� RIIHULQJ� DQG� UHFRQILUPDWLRQ� RI� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW� FRPPLWPHQW��� ,QYHVWRUV� ZKR�
FRPPLWWHG�RQ�RU�EHIRUH�VXFK�QRWLFH�ZLOO�KDYH�XQWLO����KRXUV�EHIRUH�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ORVH�WR�FDQFHO�
WKHLU�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPPLWPHQW��,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�FRQGXFW�WKH�ILUVW�RI�PXOWLSOH�FORVHV��
WKH� &RPSDQ\� DJUHHV� WR� RQO\� ZLWKGUDZ� ��������� IURP� HVFURZ� DQG� ZLOO� RQO\� FRQGXFW� WKH�
,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ORVH�LI�PRUH�WKDQ�WKLUW\������GD\V�UHPDLQ�EHIRUH�WKH�2IIHULQJ�'HDGOLQH��
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�
�
Additional Discount��RYHU�DQG�DERYH�WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�&DS�'LVFRXQW��WR�EH�SURYLGHG�IRU�HDFK�WLHU�RI�
IXQGV�UHFHLYHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DUH�DV�IROORZV���
���������ILUVW�����.�UHFHLYHG��������
�����������������������������
�������������±�0D[LPXP�2IIHULQJ������
�
7KH�2IIHULQJ� LV� EHLQJ�PDGH� WKURXJK�7LWOH�)XQGV�� WKH� ,QWHUPHGLDU\�� �7KH� IROORZLQJ� WZR� ILHOGV�
EHORZ�VHWV�IRUWK�WKH�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�EHLQJ�SDLG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�2IIHULQJ��
�
Commission/Fees�
�
�����RI�WKH�DPRXQW�UDLVHG�
�
Stock, Warrants and Other Compensation�
�
������VHFXULWLHV��YDOXH�RI�UDLVHG�PRQH\��
�
Transfer Agent and Registrar�
�
7KH�WUDQVIHU�DJHQW�DQG�UHJLVWUDU�IRU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�LV�6HFXULWL]H��
�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV��
�
:H�UHTXHVW�WKDW�\RX�SOHDVH�UHYLHZ�RXU�RUJDQL]DWLRQDO�GRFXPHQWV�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�
VXPPDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
�
�
$XWKRUL]HG�&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ�
�
$W�WKH�LQLWLDO�FORVLQJ�RI�WKLV�2IIHULQJ��LI�WKH�PLQLPXP�DPRXQW�LV�VROG���RXU�DXWKRUL]HG�FDSLWDO�VWRFN�
ZLOO� FRQVLVW� RI� �L�� ����������� VKDUHV� RI� FRPPRQ� VWRFN�� SDU� YDOXH� ������� SHU� VKDUH�� RI� ZKLFK�
���������� FRPPRQ� VKDUHV� ZLOO� EH� LVVXHG� DQG� RXWVWDQGLQJ���
�
Interest Payment and Amortization Schedule�
�
7KH�SULQFLSDO�DPRXQW�RI�D�VLQJOH�6HFXULW\�RU��1RWH��LV�������7KHUH�LV�QR�VHW�UHSD\PHQW�VFKHGXOH�
IRU�WKH�1RWHV��DQG�WKH�1RWHV�ZLOO�HLWKHU�FRQYHUW�XSRQ�WKH�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�D�&RQYHUVLRQ�(YHQW��DV�
GHILQHG�KHUHLQ��RU�XSRQ� WKH�PDWXULW\�RI� WKH�1RWHV� DQG� WKH�YRWH�RI� D�PDMRULW\�LQ�LQWHUHVW� RI� WKH�
KROGHUV�RI�VXFK�1RWHV��
7KH�1RWHV�ZLOO�PDWXUH�XSRQ���\HDUV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�LVVXDQFH��7KH�1RWHV�DUH�UHGHHPDEOH�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\��7KH�1RWHV�ZLOO�EH�UHGHHPDEOH�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�SULRU�WR�WKHLU�FRQYHUVLRQ�
LQWR�VKDUHV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�1RWHV�ZLOO�QRW�UHTXLUH�D�SUHSD\PHQW�SHQDOW\���
�
7KHUH�LV�QR�LQWHUHVW�SD\PHQW�VFKHGXOH��,QWHUHVW�PD\�EH�SDLG�LQ�FDVK�RU�FRQYHUWV�LQWR�HTXLW\�XSRQ�D�
&RQYHUVLRQ�(YHQW�RU�XSRQ�PDWXULW\��DW�WKH�GLVFUHWLRQ�RI�WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV��
�
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7KH�QRWHV�DUH�QRQ�DPRUWL]LQJ�DQG�WKH�HQWLUH�SULQFLSDO�DPRXQW�ZLOO�EH�GXH�DW�PDWXULW\��
�
Subordination�
�
�
7KH�1RWHV�DUH�QRW�VXERUGLQDWH�WR�RWKHU�LQGHEWHGQHVV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��H[FHSW�IRU�6HQLRU�'HEW��
�
Events of Default�
�
,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�VWDQGDUG�HYHQWV�RI�GHIDXOW�VXFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�IDLOXUH�WR�SD\�SULQFLSDO�DQG�RU�
LQWHUHVW� RQ� WKH� 1RWHV�� OLTXLGDWLRQ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� DQG� YROXQWDU\� RU� LQYROXQWDU\� EDQNUXSWF\�
SURFHHGLQJV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�IROORZLQJ�DUH�DGGLWLRQDO�HYHQWV�RI�GHIDXOW�SXUVXDQW�WR�WKH�1RWHV��
1RW�DSSOLFDEOH��
�
Conversion�
�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�FRQYHUW�LQWR�HLWKHU��L��D�VKDGRZ�VHULHV�RI�SUHIHUUHG�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�XSRQ�
WKH�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�D�VXEVHTXHQW�SULYDWH�SODFHPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�ZKHUHLQ�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�UHFHLYHV�JURVV�SURFHHGV�RI�QRW�OHVV�WKDQ�86����������RU��LL��LQWR�VKDUHV�RI�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�
RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��SDU�YDOXH���������XSRQ�WKH�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�HLWKHU��D��WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�D�PDMRULW\�LQ�
LQWHUHVW�RI�WKH�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�IROORZLQJ�WKH�PDWXULW\�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�RU��E��WKH�VDOH�RI�
DOO�RU�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�DVVHWV��D�PHUJHU�RU�FRQVROLGDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�ZKHUHLQ�
WKH�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�VXFK�HYHQW�ZLOO�QR�ORQJHU�
KROG�D�PDMRULW\�RI�WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YRWLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�ZKHUH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�
QRW�EH�WKH�VXUYLYLQJ�HQWLW\�LQ�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ��RU�WKH�VDOH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VWRFN�WR�D�SHUVRQ�RU�
JURXS� WKDW� ZRXOG� EHFRPH� WKH� EHQHILFLDO� RZQHU� RI� PRUH� WKDQ� ���� RI� WKH� RXWVWDQGLQJ� YRWLQJ�
VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\���L��DQG��LL��DUH�³&RQYHUVLRQ�6KDUHV´���7KH�6HFXULWLHV�ZLOO�FRQYHUW�LQWR�
&RQYHUVLRQ�6KDUHV�DW�WKH�UDWHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�WHUPV��ZKLFK�UDWHV�DUH�DGMXVWHG�E\�DGGLQJ�
WR�WKH�'LVFRXQW�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�WKH�1RWHV�WKH�$GGLWLRQDO�'LVFRXQW�IDFWRU�VHW�IRUWK�RQ�3DJH����KHUHLQ��
ZKLFK�VKDOO�DSSO\�EDVHG�RQ� WKH� WLHU�RI� IXQGLQJ� LQ�ZKLFK�HDFK� LQYHVWRU�SDUWLFLSDWHV� �H�J��� IRU�DQ�
LQYHVWRU�SXUFKDVLQJ�D�1RWH�DPRQJ�WKH�ILUVW����������RI�1RWHV�LVVXHG��DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�����ZRXOG�EH�
DGGHG�WR�WKH�����'LVFRXQW�LQ�WKH�1RWHV�SXUFKDVHG�E\�WKH�LQYHVWRU��UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�D�����'LVFRXQW�
IDFWRU�IRU�VXFK�1RWHV���:H�DGYLVH�DOO�SXUFKDVHUV� WR�FDUHIXOO\�UHYLHZ�WKH�WHUPV�RI� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�
EHIRUH�LQYHVWLQJ��
�
9RWLQJ�DQG�&RQWURO��
�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV�KDYH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV��1RQH��6HFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WKDW�FRQYHUW�LQWR�
D�VKDGRZ�VHULHV�RI�SUHIHUUHG�VWRFN�ZLOO�KDYH�WKH�VDPH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�DQG�SULRULW\�DV�WKH�VHULHV�RI�
SUHIHUUHG�VWRFN�LVVXHG�LQ�D�1H[W�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�HYHQW�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�1RWHV��6HFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�WKDW�FRQYHUW�LQWR�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�ZLOO�KDYH�WKH�VDPH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�DQG�SULRULW\�DV�KDG�E\�
VKDUHV�RI�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�YRWLQJ�DJUHHPHQWV�LQ�SODFH���
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�VKDUHKROGHU�HTXLW\�KROGHU�DJUHHPHQWV�LQ�SODFH���
�
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$QWL�'LOXWLRQ�5LJKWV��
�
7KH�6HFXULWLHV�GR�QRW�KDYH�DQWL�GLOXWLRQ�ULJKWV��
�
�
5HVWULFWLRQV�RQ�7UDQVIHU��
�
$Q\� 6HFXULWLHV� VROG� SXUVXDQW� WR� 5HJXODWLRQ� &)� EHLQJ� RIIHUHG� PD\� QRW� EH� WUDQVIHUUHG� E\� DQ\�
,QYHVWRU�RI�VXFK�6HFXULWLHV�GXULQJ�WKH�RQH�\HDU�KROGLQJ�SHULRG�EHJLQQLQJ�ZKHQ�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�ZHUH�
LVVXHG��XQOHVV�VXFK�6HFXULWLHV�ZHUH�WUDQVIHUUHG�����WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�����WR�DQ�DFFUHGLWHG�LQYHVWRU��DV�
GHILQHG�E\�5XOH�����G��RI�5HJXODWLRQ�'�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RI�������DV�DPHQGHG�����DV�SDUW�RI�
DQ� 2IIHULQJ� UHJLVWHUHG� ZLWK� WKH� 6(&� RU� ��� WR� D� PHPEHU� RI� WKH� IDPLO\� RI� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� RU� WKH�
HTXLYDOHQW��WR�D�WUXVW�FRQWUROOHG�E\�WKH�,QYHVWRU��WR�D�WUXVW�FUHDWHG�IRU�WKH�EHQHILW�RI�D�IDPLO\�PHPEHU�
RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RU�WKH�HTXLYDOHQW��RU�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�GHDWK�RU�GLYRUFH�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RU�RWKHU�
VLPLODU�FLUFXPVWDQFHV���0HPEHU�RI�WKH�IDPLO\��DV�XVHG�KHUHLQ�PHDQV�D�FKLOG��VWHSFKLOG��JUDQGFKLOG��
SDUHQW�� VWHSSDUHQW�� JUDQGSDUHQW�� VSRXVH� RU� VSRXVDO� HTXLYDOHQW�� VLEOLQJ��
PRWKHU�IDWKHU�GDXJKWHU�VRQ�VLVWHU�EURWKHU�LQ�ODZ��DQG�LQFOXGHV�DGRSWLYH�UHODWLRQVKLSV��5HPHPEHU�
WKDW�DOWKRXJK�\RX�PD\�OHJDOO\�EH�DEOH�WR�WUDQVIHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV��\RX�PD\�QRW�EH�DEOH�WR�ILQG�DQRWKHU�
SDUW\�ZLOOLQJ�WR�SXUFKDVH�WKHP��
�
2WKHU�0DWHULDO�7HUPV��
�
7KH� &RPSDQ\� GRHV� KDYH� WKH� ULJKW� WR� UHSXUFKDVH� WKH� &RQYHUWLEOH� 1RWHV� XSRQ� WKH� IROORZLQJ�
FRQGLWLRQV��%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�YRWHV�LQ�IDYRU�RI�UHSXUFKDVH��7KH�UHGHPSWLRQ�SULFH�IRU�WKH�QRWHV�
ZLOO�EH�HTXDO�WR������RI�WKH�SULQFLSDO�DPRXQW�RI�HDFK�1RWH��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DOO�DFFUXHG�DQG�XQSDLG�
LQWHUHVW�WKHUHRQ��LI�DQ\�WR��EXW�H[FOXGLQJ��WKH�GDWH�IL[HG�IRU�UHGHPSWLRQ��
�
7$;�0$77(56��
�
($&+�35263(&7,9(�,19(6725�6+28/'�&2168/7�:,7+�+,6�25�+(5�2:1�7$;�
$1'� (5,6$� $'9,625� $6� 72� 7+(� 3$57,&8/$5� &216(48(1&(6� 72� 7+(�
,19(6725� 2)� 7+(� 385&+$6(�� 2:1(56+,3� $1'� 6$/(� 2)� 7+(� ,19(6725¶6�
6(&85,7,(6��$6�:(//�$6�3266,%/(�&+$1*(6�,1�7+(�7$;�/$:6���

72� ,1685(� &203/,$1&(� :,7+� 7+(� 5(48,5(0(176� ,0326('� %<� 7+(�
,17(51$/�5(9(18(�6(59,&(��:(�,1)250�<28�7+$7�$1<�7$;�67$7(0(17�
,1� 7+,6� )250� &� &21&(51,1*� 81,7('� 67$7(6� )('(5$/� 7$;(6� ,6� 127�
,17(1'('� 25� :5,77(1� 72� %(� 86('�� $1'� &$1127� %(� 86('�� %<� $1<�
7$;3$<(5�)25�7+(�385326(�2)�$92,',1*�$1<�7$;�5(/$7('�3(1$/7,(6�
81'(5�7+(�81,7('�67$7(6�,17(51$/�5(9(18(�&2'(��$1<�7$;�67$7(0(17�
+(5(,1� &21&(51,1*� 81,7('� 67$7(6� )('(5$/� 7$;(6� :$6� :5,77(1� ,1�
&211(&7,21� :,7+� 7+(� 0$5.(7,1*� 25� 352027,21� 2)� 7+(�
75$16$&7,216�25�0$77(56�72�:+,&+�7+(� 67$7(0(17�5(/$7(6�� ($&+�
7$;3$<(5�6+28/'�6((.�$'9,&(�%$6('�21�7+(�7$;3$<(5¶6�3$57,&8/$5�
&,5&8067$1&(6�)520�$1�,1'(3(1'(17�7$;�$'9,625��

3RWHQWLDO�,QYHVWRUV�ZKR�DUH�QRW�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�UHVLGHQWV�DUH�XUJHG�WR�FRQVXOW�WKHLU�WD[�DGYLVRUV�
UHJDUGLQJ� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� IHGHUDO� LQFRPH� WD[� LPSOLFDWLRQV� RI� DQ\� LQYHVWPHQW� LQ� WKH�
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&RPSDQ\�� DV� ZHOO� DV� WKH� WD[DWLRQ� RI� VXFK� LQYHVWPHQW� E\� WKHLU� FRXQWU\� RI� UHVLGHQFH��
)XUWKHUPRUH��LW�VKRXOG�EH�DQWLFLSDWHG�WKDW�GLVWULEXWLRQV�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�VXFK�IRUHLJQ�
LQYHVWRUV�PD\�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�81,7('�67$7(6�ZLWKKROGLQJ�WD[��

($&+� 327(17,$/� ,19(6725� 6+28/'� &2168/7� +,6� 25� +(5� 2:1� 7$;�
$'9,625�&21&(51,1*�7+(�3266,%/(�,03$&7�2)�67$7(�7$;(6��

�
75$16$&7,216�:,7+�5(/$7('�3(56216�$1'�&21)/,&76�2)�,17(5(67��
�
5HODWHG�3HUVRQ�7UDQVDFWLRQV��
�
)URP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�HQJDJH�LQ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SHUVRQV��5HODWHG�SHUVRQV�
DUH�GHILQHG�DV�DQ\�GLUHFWRU�RU�RIILFHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQ\�SHUVRQ�ZKR�LV�WKH�EHQHILFLDO�RZQHU�RI�
���SHUFHQW�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YRWLQJ�HTXLW\�VHFXULWLHV��FDOFXODWHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�
RI�YRWLQJ�SRZHU�� DQ\� SURPRWHU�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�� DQ\� LPPHGLDWH� IDPLO\�PHPEHU�RI� DQ\� RI� WKH�
IRUHJRLQJ�SHUVRQV�RU�DQ�HQWLW\�FRQWUROOHG�E\�DQ\�VXFK�SHUVRQ�RU�SHUVRQV��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FRQGXFWHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SHUVRQV��
�
2Q�2FWREHU�����������WKH�&RPSDQ\�HQWHUHG�LQWR�D�OLFHQVLQJ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�LWV�VROH�VKDUHKROGHU��
LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�UHFHLYHV�DQ�H[FOXVLYH��8QLWHG�6WDWHV��LUUHYRFDEOH��UR\DOW\�EHDULQJ��ULJKW�DQG�
OLFHQVH�RI�FHUWDLQ�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\�UHODWHG�WR�WLQ\)DUPV�WKH�DSSOLDQFH��WLQ\6RLO�WKH�SURSULHWDU\�
VRLO�UHFLSH�LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�RWKHU�LQWHOOHFWXDO�FDSLWDO�LQ�GHYHORSPHQW��7KH�WHUP�RI�WKH�OLFHQVH�LV�IRU�
���\HDUV�XQOHVV�WHUPLQDWHG�E\�HLWKHU�SDUW\�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQW��7KH�UR\DOW\�IHH�
ZLOO�EH����RI�JURVV�VDOHV��1R�UR\DOW\�IHH�ZLOO�EH�GXH�RU�DFFUXH�XQWLO�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�JHQHUDWHG�
�����������LQ�UHYHQXH��5R\DOW\�SD\PHQWV�DUH�GXH�TXDUWHUO\�DQG�VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG������������SHU�
TXDUWHU�RU�������������DQQXDOO\��
�
&RQIOLFWV�RI�,QWHUHVW��
�
7R�WKH�EHVW�RI�RXU�NQRZOHGJH�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�QRW�HQJDJHG�LQ�DQ\�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RU�UHODWLRQVKLSV��
ZKLFK�PD\�JLYH�ULVH�WR�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LWV�RSHUDWLRQV�RU�LWV�VHFXULW\�KROGHUV��
�
�
27+(5�,1)250$7,21��
�
,QYHVWRU�YLGHR��KWWSV���YLPHR�FRP�����������
�
�
%DG�$FWRU�'LVFORVXUH��
�
7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�%DG�$FWRU�'LVTXDOLILFDWLRQV�XQGHU�DQ\�UHOHYDQW�8�6��VHFXULWLHV�
ODZV��
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�

3XUVXDQW�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�6HFWLRQV���D�����DQG��$�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RI������DQG�
5HJXODWLRQ�&URZGIXQGLQJ������������HW�VHT����WKH�LVVXHU�FHUWLILHV�WKDW�LW�KDV�UHDVRQDEOH�JURXQGV�WR�
EHOLHYH�WKDW�LW�PHHWV�DOO�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�ILOLQJ�RQ�)RUP�&�DQG�KDV�GXO\�FDXVHG�WKLV�)RUP�WR�
EH�VLJQHG�RQ�LWV�EHKDOI�E\�WKH�GXO\�DXWKRUL]HG�XQGHUVLJQHG��
�
�

� �V�$DPDU�.KZDMD�

� �6LJQDWXUH�

� �

� $DPDU�.KZDMD�

� �1DPH�

� �

� )RXQGHU�DQG�&(2�

� �7LWOH�

�
�
�
�
�

3XUVXDQW�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�6HFWLRQV���D�����DQG��$�RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RI������DQG�
5HJXODWLRQ�&URZGIXQGLQJ� ��� �������� HW� VHT���� WKLV� )RUP�&� KDV� EHHQ� VLJQHG� E\� WKH� IROORZLQJ�
SHUVRQV�LQ�WKH�FDSDFLWLHV�DQG�RQ�WKH�GDWHV�LQGLFDWHG��
�
�
Instructions.�
�
��� 7KH� IRUP� VKDOO� EH� VLJQHG� E\� WKH� LVVXHU�� LWV� SULQFLSDO� H[HFXWLYH� RIILFHU� RU� RIILFHUV�� LWV�
SULQFLSDO�ILQDQFLDO�RIILFHU��LWV�FRQWUROOHU�RU�SULQFLSDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�RIILFHU�DQG�DW�OHDVW�D�PDMRULW\�RI�
WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�RU�SHUVRQV�SHUIRUPLQJ�VLPLODU�IXQFWLRQV��
�
��� 7KH�QDPH�RI�HDFK�SHUVRQ�VLJQLQJ�WKH�IRUP�VKDOO�EH�W\SHG�RU�SULQWHG�EHQHDWK�WKH�VLJQDWXUH��
�
,QWHQWLRQDO� PLVVWDWHPHQWV� RU� RPLVVLRQV� RI� IDFWV� FRQVWLWXWH� IHGHUDO� FULPLQDO� YLRODWLRQV�� 6HH� ���
8�6�&��������
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�
([KLELW�$� )LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT 

 
 
To the Stockholders and Management of 
Modgarden (USA), Inc. 
Sheridan, Wyoming 
  
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Modgarden (USA), Inc. (the “Company”) a 
Wyoming corporation, which comprise the balance sheet as of October 20, 2020, and the related 
statements of operations, stockholder’s equity, and cash flows as of such date, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s 
financial data and making inquiries of Company management. A review is substantially less in scope than 
an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a 
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Accountants’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for 
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial 
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our 
conclusion. 
 
Accountants’ Conclusion 
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a 
going concern. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company is newly formed and has 
not yet commenced planned principal operations nor generated revenues or profits since Inception. These 
factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do 
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

 

 

Newport Beach, California 
November 20, 2020



 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and independent accountants’ review report 
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MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 
BALANCE SHEET    

AS OF OCTOBER 20, 2020 
(unaudited) 

 
 

Assets
Current assets:
Cash -$                         

Total current assets -                           

Total assets -$                         

Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                         
Total current liabilities -                           

Total liabilities -                           

Commitments and contingencies (Note 4) -                           

Stockholder's Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 authorized, 4,400,505 
issued and outstanding at October 20, 2020 4,401                       
Subscription receivable (4,401)                      
Additional paid-in capital -                           
Retained earnings -                           

Total stockholder's equity -                           
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity -$                         
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MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
OCTOBER 20, 2020 

 (unaudited) 
 

Revenues -$                         

Operating Expenses:
General and administrative -                           

Total operating expenses -                           

Net income -$                         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and independent accountants’ review report



 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and independent accountants’ review report 
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MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER’S DEFICIT 

OCTOBER 20, 2020 
 (unaudited) 

 
 
 

Shares Amount
Inception -                -                -                     -                 -                 -                 

Founder Shares 4,400,505     4,401            -                     (4,401)            -                 -                 
October 20, 2020 4,400,505     4,401$          -$                   (4,401)$          -$               -$               

Common Stock

Additional Paid-
in Capital

Retained 
Earnings

Total 
Stockholder's 

Equity
Subscription 
Receivable

 
 



 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements and independent accountants’ review report 
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MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

OCTOBER 20, 2020 
 (unaudited) 

  
 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income -$                         

Net cash provided by operating activities -                           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash provided by financing activities -                           

Increase in cash and cash equivalents -                           
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period -                           
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period -$                         

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest -$                         
Cash paid for income taxes -$                         

Non cash investing and financing activities:
Subscription receivable for founder shares 4,401$                     

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(unaudited) 
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NOTE 1 – NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
 
Modgarden (USA), Inc. was formed on October 20, 2020 (“Inception”) in the State of Wyoming.   The 
financial statements of Modgarden (USA), Inc. (which may be referred to as the "Company", 
“Modgarden”, "we," "us," or "our") are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The Company’s headquarter is located in 
Sheridan, Wyoming. 
 
Modgarden is a company aiming to specialize in the production and sale of tinyFarms, which are a self-
contained organic, modular vegetable appliance and seed/consumable bundle designed to work in 
harmony to grow a variety of living vegetables including leafy greens, microgreens and common kitchen 
herbs. The product was designed for people who do not necessarily have experience growing their own 
food, but are interested in pure, nutrient-dense, healthy food they can trust. 
 
Management Plans and Going Concern 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates 
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company 
only recently incorporated, had not generated revenues to date, and is reliant on additional financing to 
carry out its intended business plan. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability 
of the Company to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are issued. 
  
During the next 12 months, we intend to fund the Company’s operations through revenues from 
operations, related party advances, and security offerings to third-parties. There are no assurances that we 
will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company. If the Company is unable to obtain 
enough additional capital, it may be required to reduce the scope of planned operations, which could harm 
the business financial condition and operating results. The financial statements do not include any 
adjustments that might result from these uncertainties. 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the 
reported amount of expenses during the reporting periods.  Actual results could materially differ from 
these estimates. It is reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term.  
  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. Applicable accounting guidance 
provides an established hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of 
observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable 
inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in valuing 
the asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors that 
market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. There are three levels of inputs that may be 
used to measure fair value: 

  
  Level 1  - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities  

      in active markets. 
  Level 2  - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace. 
  Level 3  - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity. 



 
MODGARDEN (USA), INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(unaudited) 
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The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. 

  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Company applies ASC 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”).  Deferred income taxes are recognized for 
the tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates 
applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation 
allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be 
realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any and the change 
during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.  
 
ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain 
tax positions.  A tax benefit from an uncertain position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” 
that the position is sustainable upon examination by the relevant taxing authority based on its technical 
merit. 
  
The Company is subject to tax in the United States (“U.S.”) and files tax returns in the U.S. Federal 
jurisdiction and Wyoming state jurisdiction.  The Company is subject to U.S. Federal, state and local 
income tax examinations by tax authorities.  The Company has not yet filed income tax returns and thus 
not currently under examination by any tax authority. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
The Company will recognize revenue under the guidance of ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. Under ASC 606, the Company 1) identifies the contract with the customer 2) identifies the 
performance obligations in the contract 3) determines the transaction price, 4) determines if an allocation 
of that transaction price is required to the performance obligations in the contract, and 5) recognizes 
revenue when or as the companies satisfies a performance obligation.  To date, the Company has not 
recognized any revenue from intended operations.  
 
Risks and Uncertainties 
The Company’s operations are subject to compliance with new laws and regulations. Significant changes 
to regulations governing the way the Company derives revenues could impact the company negatively. 
Technological and advancements and updates as well as maintaining compliance standards are required to 
maintain the Company’s operations. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Company will maintain its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of 
America which it believes to be credit worthy.  Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to $250,000.  At times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally 
insured limits. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs 
to date, including those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those 
issued to date either (i) provide supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not 
applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a significant impact our financial statements. 
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NOTE 4 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
We are currently not involved with or know of any pending or threatening litigation against the Company 
or any of its officers. 
 
NOTE 5 – STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY 
 
Common Stock 
We are authorized the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of our common stock with par value of $0.001.  
 
NOTE 6 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
On October 21, 2020, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with its sole shareholder, in which 
the Company receives an exclusive, United States, irrevocable, royalty-bearing, right and license of 
certain intellectual property related to tinyFarms the appliance, tinySoil the proprietary soil recipe 
including any other intellectual capital in development.   The term of the license is for 99 years unless 
terminated by either party based on the terms of the agreement.  The royalty fee will be 1% of gross sales.  
No royalty fee will be due or accrue until the Company has generated $1,000,000 in revenue.  Royalty 
payments are due quarterly and shall not exceed $1,000,000 per quarter or $4,000,000, annually.  
 
NOTE 7 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events that occurred after October 20, 2020 through November 20, 
2020, the issuance date of these financial statements.  There have been no other events or transactions during 
this time which would have a material effect on these financial statements, other than that described below. 
 
Subsequent to Inception, the Company entered into a technology licensing agreement with a related party as 
discussed in Note 6. 
 
 


